
  BBooaarrdd  ooff  CCoommmmiissssiioonneerrss  
MMeeeettiinngg  

OOccttoobbeerr  77,,  22002244  



 
October 3, 2024  4:01:48 PM 

 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
MONDAY, OCTOBER 7, 2024 

COMMISSIONERS’ ROOM 
116 ADAMS STREET, PLYMOUTH, NC 

 
 6:00 PM Call to Order—Chair Keyes 
 6:01 PM Invocation / Pledge   
   Additions / Deletions 
 
Item 1 6:05 PM Consent Agenda 

a) Approval of Minutes of September 3, 2024, and for Special Called Meetings on 
September 9 & 27, 2024  

b) Tax Refunds, Releases & Insolvents 
c) RESO 2024-033 Continuity of Operations during County Manager’s Absence 
d) RESO 2024-034 Appointing Jason Squires as Deputy Clerk to the Board of Washington 

County 
 

Item 2 6:10 PM Public Forum (3-minute limit per speaker)  
 
Item 3 6:20 PM  Department Information Update: Tax Department, Ms. Sherri Wilkins, Director 
  
Item 4 6:35 PM Update from the Salvation Army, Ms. Kathy Winstead 
 
Item 5 6:50 PM  Public Hearing (continuation):  Planning Board Recommendation:  Signage Regulations 

Amendment, Mr. Allen Pittman, Planning/Safety/Inspections Director 
 
Item 6 7:00 PM Smoking & Tobacco Use Ordinance Amendment, Mr. Jason Squires, ACM 
 
Item 7 7:10 PM Boards & Committees, Ms. Julie J. Bennett, Clerk to the Board 
 
Item 8 7:20 PM Finance Officer’s Report, Budget Amendments/Budget Transfers, Ms. Missy Dixon, 

Finance Officer 
 
Item 9 7:30 PM Other Items by Chair, Commissioners, CM/CA, Finance Officer or Clerk 

 Employee Appreciation Events & Schedule, Ms. Julie Bennett, Clerk to the Board 
 Public Safety Awareness Day, October 22, 2024, Vernon James Center 
 America 250th Anniversary, Mr. Curtis Potter, CM/CA 

 
Item 10 7:40 PM Closed Session has been scheduled according to NCGS§143-318.11(a)(3)  (attorney-client 

privilege), NCGS§143-318.11(a)(5) property acquisition, and NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6) 
(personnel) 

    Adjourn 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
       ITEM NO:  1 
 
       DATE:  October 7, 2024 
 
ITEM:  Consent Agenda      
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Items listed under Consent are generally of a routine nature.  The Board may take action to 
approve/disapprove all items in a single vote.  Any item may be withheld from a general action, 
to be discussed and voted upon separately at the discretion of the Board. 
 

a) Approval of Minutes of September 3, 2024, and for Special Called Meetings 
on September 9 & 27, 2024 (attached at the end of the package) 
 

b) Tax Refunds, Releases & Insolvents (attached)  
 

c) RESO 2024-033 Continuity of Operations during County Manager’s 
Absence (attached) 

 
d) RESO 2024-034 Appointing Jason Squires as Deputy Clerk to the Board of 

Washington County (attached) 
 











Washington County Resolution 2024-033 Page 1 of 3 

 

 

 
 

 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS: 
ANN C. KEYES, CHAIR 

 
CAROL V. PHELPS, VICE-CHAIR 

TRACEY A. JOHNSON 

JOHN C. SPRUILL 

JULIUS WALKER, JR. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
POST OFFICE BOX 1007 

PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 
OFFICE (252) 793-5823 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER, ICMA-CM 

COUNTY MANAGER & COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

JASON SQUIRES 
ASSISTANT COUNTY MANAGER 

acm@washconc.org 
 
 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 

JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 

RESOLUTION 2024-033 
 

ESTABLISHING CONTINUITY OF OPERATIONS  
DURING DECLARED STATES OF EMERGENCY OR  

THE UNAVAILABILITY OR ABSENCE OF THE COUNTY MANAGER 
 

WHEREAS, in light of recent events, including without limitation the impact of the Novel Coronavirus 
(COVID-19) on county services and operations, the potentially increasing severity of tropical storm/hurricane 
related events, and the recent addition of an Assistant County Manager position; the County Manager 
recommends that the Board of Commissioners update certain procedures previously established pursuant to 
Resolution RESO 2020-010 to maintain the appropriate official chain of command and continuity of county 
operations during potential emergency situations; and 

 
WHEREAS, the intent of such procedures is to better insure the ongoing provision of continuous and 

uninterrupted county services and operations during certain potential emergency situations, and to mitigate and 
reduce the risks of their potential disruption which may otherwise result in the absence of such procedures; and 

 
WHEREAS, after careful consideration, the Board of Commissioners now desires to update such 

procedures by adopting this resolution. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF WASHINGTON 

COUNTY HEREBY RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. That during a declared State of Emergency for Washington County: 
 

a. The County Manager and/or County Finance Officer shall have the authority to temporarily 
suspend compliance with any local county purchasing policies that may otherwise have been 
adopted, or which are in effect during the period of any declared state of emergency.   

 

mailto:cpotter@washconc.org
mailto:acm@washconc.org
mailto:mdixon@washconc.org
mailto:jbennett@washconc.org


Washington County Resolution 2024-033 Page 2 of 3 

 

 

i. This authority may be exercised retroactively to coincide with the initial day of the 
declared state of emergency. 
 

ii. This authority should only be exercised if doing so is deemed by the County 
Manager or County Finance Officer to be in the best interest of the County with 
respect to being able to more effectively respond to any emergency situation giving 
rise to the declared state of emergency, or to more freely qualify for or comply with 
applicable FEMA reimbursement program requirements. 
 

iii. Nothing herein relieves or removes the continuing obligation to adhere to all 
applicable state and federal purchasing and procurement rules, regulations, or laws. 

 
2. That unless otherwise directed by the Board of Commissioners, during any period in which the 

County Manager is unable to reasonably exercise the duties and powers of that position for any 
reason, the Assistant County Manager (or in the absence thereof, the County Finance Officer) is 
hereby appointed and authorized to act in their place as “Acting County Manager” and shall be 
empowered when acting in such capacity to exercise any and all of the duties and powers conferred 
upon the position of County Manager by law, or by the Board of Commissioners. 

 
a. The intent of this provision is to establish a clear and direct successive chain of command by 

appointing the Assistant County Manager first, and then the County Finance Officer second, 
as the default successors to the duties, powers, and authority of the County Manager position 
if the County Manager is unable to reasonably perform the duties and powers of that 
position for any reason. 
 

b. However, the Assistant County Manager or County Finance Officer should carefully 
consider all available information and the circumstances of each situation giving rise to their 
being called upon to potentially serve in the capacity of Acting County Manager before 
exercising any authority granted under this provision in that capacity.  Such authority should 
only be exercised during emergency situations where immediate action is reasonably 
required to preserve and protect public safety and welfare, or to prevent an unreasonable 
disruption in county services or operations that might otherwise result from a delay in 
decision making caused by waiting on the availability of the actual County Manager, or the 
convening of the Board of Commissioners to appoint an Interim County Manager depending 
upon the circumstances. 
 

c. Any action taken by the Assistant County Manager or County Finance Officer in their 
capacity as Acting County Manager hereunder shall be clearly communicated as such to all 
recipients.  Any and all documents signed in such capacity shall clearly note the same.  The 
Assistant County Manager and County Finance Officer should take reasonable steps to keep 
the County Manager and Board of Commissioners advised of any such actions, and a full 
detailed accounting thereof shall be made to the County Manager or Board of 
Commissioners upon their request. 
 

d. Nothing herein prevents the Board of Commissioners from appointing a different person to 
serve as acting, interim, or permanent County Manager at any time. 

 
 



Washington County Resolution 2024-033 Page 3 of 3 

 

 

3. The updated procedures outlined in this Resolution are intended to fully replace the previously 
adopted procedures established under Resolution 2020-010 which shall accordingly be deemed 
fully rescinded immediately upon the adoption of this Resolution. 

 
ADOPTED this 7th day of October 2024. 
 
 

       __________________________________________ 
       Ann C. Keyes, Chair 

       Washington County Board of Commissioners 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 
Clerk to the Board  
 



Washington County Resolution 2024-034 Page 1 of 1  

 
 

 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS: 
ANN C. KEYES, CHAIR 

 
CAROL V. PHELPS, VICE-CHAIR 

TRACEY A. JOHNSON 

JOHN C. SPRUILL 

JULIUS WALKER, JR. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
POST OFFICE BOX 1007 

PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 
OFFICE (252) 793-5823 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER, ICMA-CM 

COUNTY MANAGER & COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

JASON SQUIRES 
ASSISTANT COUNTY MANAGER 

acm@washconc.org 
 
 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 

JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 

RESOLUTION 2024-034 
 
RESOLUTION APPOINTING JASON SQUIRES AS DEPUTY CLERK TO 

THE BOARD OF WASHINGTON COUNTY 
 

WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statutes, Section 153A-111 specifies and directs that the Board of 
Commissioners of every county shall appoint a Clerk to the Board to perform any duties that may be required by law or 
by the Board of Commissioners;  

 
 WHEREAS, there will be occasions when the Washington County Clerk to the Board is unable to be present in 
order to attest documents or approve certain actions as has been approved by the Board; and 
 
 WHEREAS, this Board is of the opinion that Jason Squires possesses the requisite knowledge, experience and 
qualifications to serve as Deputy Clerk to the Board of Washington County. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners for the County of Washington as 

follows:  
 
1. That Jason Squires be and he is herby appointed Deputy Clerk to the Board of Commissioners for 

Washington County will full power and authority to act in the place and stead of the Washington County 
Clerk to the Board. 

2. That this resolution shall be effective upon its adoption. 
 

ADOPTED this 7th day of October 2024. 
 

       __________________________________________ 
       Ann C. Keyes, Chair 

       Washington County Board of Commissioners 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 
Clerk to the Board  

mailto:cpotter@washconc.org
mailto:acm@washconc.org
mailto:mdixon@washconc.org
mailto:jbennett@washconc.org


 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   2  
 
       DATE:   October 7, 2024 
 
ITEM:        Public Forum (3-minute limit per speaker) 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
As is required by North Carolina General Statute §153A-52.1, time has been allotted for comments from 
the public. 

  
Public Comment Statements 

In December of 2015, the Washington County Board of Commissioners adopted a public comment period.  
Essentially this policy said that a public comment period shall be set aside at the beginning of each regular 
monthly Commissioners and it shall be limited to a maximum of thirty (30) minutes. 
Additionally this policy stated that all speakers are required to sign up prior to the meeting at which they 
wish to speak. The signup sheet must be on the podium 30 mins prior to the meeting.  Each speaker shall 
clearly write their name, address, and the topic upon which they wish to speak on the signup sheet.   
This board adopted rules that must be followed. Some of the high points of those rules, which I wish to 
remind the public is: 

1. Speakers shall be acknowledged by the Board Chairperson. 
2. Speakers shall address the Board from the lectern at the front of the room, and begin their remarks 

by stating their name and address.   
3. Public comment is not intended to require any Board or staff members to answer any impromptu 

questions or engage in debate.  Speakers shall address all remarks to the Board as a body, and not 
to any individual board or staff members.  Discussions between speakers and members of the 
audience shall not be allowed. 

4. Speakers shall be courteous in their language and presentations, and shall not use profanity, racial 
slurs, or make any obscene remarks, nor engage in any personal attacks of commissioners.  

5. Speakers shall have a maximum of three (3) to five (5) minutes to make their remarks depending 
on the number of speakers and topics.  The Chairperson may limit the number of speakers allowed 
to make substantially similar comments with respect to the same topic.   

6. Speakers who have prepared written remarks or supporting documents are encouraged to leave a 
copy of such remarks and documents with the County Clerk. 

7. Speakers shall not discuss any of the following:  matters which are the subject of public hearings 
set for the same meeting; matters which are closed session matters, including without limitation 
matters within the attorney-client privilege, anticipated or pending litigation, personnel, property 
acquisition, and matters which are made confidential by law. 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  3 
 
       DATE:  October 7, 2024 
 
 
ITEM:        Department Information Update: Tax Office, Ms. Sherri Wilkins, Tax 

Administrator 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Ms. Wilkins will share some services that are available to our citizens, that they may be 
unaware of, from the Tax Office. 
 
Below are the departments that have already presented at a BoCC meeting this year.  If 
you have a request to hear from a certain department, please contact the Clerk. 
 
Month   Department   Director     
JAN    
FEB Sheriff’s Office  Arlo Norman 
MAR  Elections   Dora Bell 
APR 
MAY 
JUNE Senior Center   Renee’ Collier 
JULY Soil & Water   Chris Respess 
AUG Facilities   Ricky Young 
SEPT Utilities   Lee Sasser 
OCT Tax Office   Sherri Wilkins  
NOV Cooperative Ext.  Rebecca Liverman 
DEC 
 

 
 
 



 
 

List of Departments 
 

  Planning/Inspections  Human Resources 
  EM    Tax  
  EMS    Soil & Water 
  Elections   Utilities 
  Detention   DSS 
  Airport    Facilities 
  Landfill   TTA 
  Finance   Library 
  Register of Deeds  Soil & Water 
  MTW    Sheriff’s Office 
  Senior Center   IT 
  Recreation   E911 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   4 
 
       DATE:    October 7, 2024 
 
ITEM:        Update from the Salvation Army, Ms. Kathy Winstead 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Ms. Winstead will share some services that are available to our citizens, that they may be 
unaware of, from the Salvation Army. 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  5 
 
       DATE:  October 7, 2024 
 
 
ITEM:        Public Hearing (continuation):  Planning Board Recommendation:  Signage 

Regulations Ordinance Amendment, Mr. Allen Pittman, 
Planning/Safety/Inspections Director 

  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
This is a continuation of the Public Hearing that was started at the September 3rd BoCC 
meeting.  The Board asked for a better explanation of what changes were made in the 
Sign Ordinance Amendment.  Staff has completed documents for more clarification:  a 
list of changes made and a “tracked changes” document, along with a clean document for 
signature. 
 
 
A public hearing is required before the Board can approve this amendment. 
See attached. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Agenda Item Memo  Page 1 of 2 

 

 
POST OFFICE BOX 1007 

PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 

OFFICE (252) 793-5823    

   AGENDA ITEM MEMO 

MEETING DATE:  October 7th, 2024  MEMO Date:  September 10, 2024      ITEM:   

SUBJECT:  Amendment/Restatement of Article VII of the Washington County Zoning Ordinance 

DEPARTMENT: Planning 

FROM:  John Waterman, LFNC Fellow 

ATTACHMENTS: 
A- Article VII amended/restated redlined version reflecting changes including additions (blue) deletions 

(red) relocations (green) (20pgs) 

B- Final Article VII revision to be voted on (12pgs) 

PURPOSE:  To review and adopt the amended/restated Article VII of the Washington County Zoning Ordinance 

 

BACKGROUND:   

 

The main changes involve: 

• Greater specificity in defining types of signs, including electronic and digital signs. 

• Stricter rules for certain residential and commercial areas. 

• Updates to permit requirements and processes, emphasizing safety and aesthetics. 

• A more structured approach to appeals, with reference to related zoning articles. 

 

Purpose and Intent: Unchanged. 

Definitions 

• “Flat sign” has been removed. Minor updates are made to "Directional Signs" and "Internally Illuminated Signs." 

• Additional language for the Planning Coordinator has been added, referring to a different article in the zoning 

ordinance. 

Sign Permit Requirements 

• This section has been moved to follow section B “Definitions”, rather than precede it; additionally, the article 

now provides insight on how to apply for a sign permit to the planning board. 

Prohibited Signs 

• Language has been simplified, and directory signs are now prohibited in residential areas (except for churches). 

Some new restrictions on pole signs in residential areas and stricter rules on projecting signs over public property 

have been introduced. 

Permitted Signs for Identification in a Residential Zone 

• See the previous ordinance’s section K “Permitted Signs for all Residential Uses”; otherwise, no functional 

changes (though sections were re-ordered for clarity). 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS: 

ANN C. KEYES, CHAIR 

CAROL V. PHELPS, VICE-CHAIR  

TRACEY A. JOHNSON 

JOHN C. SPRUILL 

JULIUS WALKER, JR. 

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF: 

CURTIS S. POTTER, ICMA-CM  
  COUNTY MANAGER & COUNTY ATTORNEY 

cpotter@washconc.org  
 

JASON SQUIRES 
ASSISTANT COUNTY MANAGER 

acm@washconc.org 

 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 
 

      JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 

 
 



Agenda Item Memo  Page 2 of 2 

 

Permitted Signs for Commercial Use 

• See the previous ordinance’s section L “Permitted Signs for Commercial Use”. 

Permitted Signs for Commercial and Corridor Zones 

• See the previous ordinance’s section M “Permitted Signs for Manufacturing and Industrial Use.” Language has 

been heavily simplified, but function is identical. 

• This section also contains the new rules for LCD/LED/Projection signs; the new ordinance generally prohibits 

these where possible, with limited exceptions for commercial buildings, and new regulations for window signs, 

sign materials, and gas station island signs.  

Outdoor Advertising Signs 

• Adapted from the previous ordinance’s section N “Outdoor Advertising Signs”, though it provides additional 

clarity on the need to acquire electrical installation/construction permits as required by state law. 

Exempt Signs 

• Real estate, instructional signs, and signs advertising agricultural products are exempt from all provisions of the 

new ordinance (in addition to the previous list). 

• It also incorporates the previous ordinance’s section I “Nonconforming Signs”. 

Appeals and Remedies, Enforcement 

• The new ordinance creates a process by which the Planning Board and Coordinator can better “increase the 

flexibility” of the ordinance, and clarifies that enforcement comes from the County Manager and Planning 

Coordinator. 

 

Entirely Removed Sections 

• The old ordinance section D “General Requirements for All Signs” has been removed. 

• The old ordinance section E “Calculation of Sign Area” has been removed. 

• Functionally, these two sections would be included as part of the application process laid out in the new 

“Sign Permits Requirement” section. 

• The old ordinance section G “Temporary Signs” has been removed. 

• The old ordinance section J “Abandoned Signs” has been removed. 

• Aside from the new requirements around LCD/LED/Projection signs, this is the only policy difference 

between the two documents. These rules were covered by a combination of the Outdoor Advertising 

Control Act, the new appeals process and the sign permit requirements. Please consult the Planning 

Department for more details. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACTS:  N/A 

 

RECOMMENDATION(S):  

 

1. VOTE: To approve the amendments/restatement of Article VII of the Washington County Zoning 

Ordinance as presented.   

 

 



Washington County, North Carolina    July 1September 10, 20214  

 Article VII: Signage Regulations ● 1  

  

Article 7: 1 

A. Purpose and Intent 2 

B. Sign Permit Requirement 3 

C. Sign Definitions 3 

D. General Requirements for All Signs 5 

E. Calculation of Sign Area 6 

F. Exempt Signs 6 

G. Temporary Signs 7 

H. Prohibited Signs 8 

I. Nonconforming Signs 9 

J. Abandoned Signs 9 

K. Permitted Signs for all Residential Uses 10 

L. Permitted Signs for Commercial Uses 11 

M. Permitted Signs for Manufacturing and Industrial Uses 16 

 

Signage Regulations 

 N. Special Sign Exceptions 11All 

References to Special Exceptions deleted per GS160-D 

Article 7:   

Signage RegulationsSIGNAGE REGULATIONS   

Purpose and Intent                              2  

Definitions                                2  

Sign Permit Requirements                                      4  

Prohibited Signs                               4  

Permitted Signs for allIdentification in A Residential Zone                     5  

Permitted Signs for Commercial Use                         6  



Washington County, North Carolina    July 1September 10, 20214  

 Article VII: Signage Regulations ● 2  

  

Permitted Signs for Commercial and Corridor Zones                   10  

Outdoor Advertising Signs                          11  

Exempt Signs                   11 Appeals and Remedies                 12  

Enforcement                             12  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

    

A. Purpose and Intent:   

   

The purpose of this article is to regulate the size, location, height and construction of 

signs for public observance; to protect the public health, safety, convenience and general 

welfare; to facilitate the creation of a convenient, attractive and harmonious community, 

to protect property values and to further economic development objectives of Washington 

County.  Signs subject to these regulations include all exterior signs and permanent 

interior window signs which are placed for exterior observance.  To these ends, these 

regulations are intended to promote signs which are:   

   

1. An enhancement to the appearance of the County’s corridors, residential neighborhoods 

and business areas;   

   

2. Legible and appropriate to the activity to which they pertain;   

   

3. Constructed and maintained in a structurally sound and attractive condition;   and 

   

4. Limited to the specific use or business that is in operation on the premises.   

  

  



Washington County, North Carolina    July 1September 10, 20214  

 Article VII: Signage Regulations ● 3  

  

B. Sign Permit Requirement: 

Except as provided hereinafter, no sign shall be erected, installed, used, altered, painted, 

relocated, replaced or reconstructed until a Sign Permit has been issued by the Planning 

Coordinator. 

C. Sign Definitions:   

  

For the purpose of this aArticle, certain terms and words pertaining to signs are hereby 

defined.:  

  

1. Awning Sign. A sign painted or printed on, attached flat or sewn onto valance or body of 

any awning.  

2. Billboard Sign. A sign used as an outdoor display for the purpose of advertising or 

promoting a business, service, activity or products, which is not located on the premises 

on which a sign is situated. Also referred to as Outdoor Advertising Sign.  

3. Building Mounted Sign. A sign attached to, painted on, inscribed upon or deriving its 

major support from a building, including a wall sign, a projecting sign, a canopy sign, a 

marquee or an awning sign.  

4. Bulletin Board. A sign that identifies an institution or organization on the premises of 

which it is located and that contains the name of the institution or organization, the 

names of individuals connected with it and general announcements of events or activities 

occurring at the institution or similar message.  

5. Canopy Sign. A sign attached to or displayed on a canopy. For the purpose of this Article, 

a canopy is a permanent, roof-like structure of rigid materials either supported by and 

extending from a building or free-standing, including a marquee.  

6. Changeable Copy Sign. A sign or part of a sign that is designed so that characters, letters 

or illustrations can be changed or rearranged without altering the face or surface of the 

sign.  

7. Detached Sign. See Freestanding Sign. 

8. Directional Sign. An on-premises sign giving directions, instructions, and/or facility 

information, but containing no advertising copy (i.e. parking, exit or entrance signs).  

98. Directory Sign. A subsidiary sign listing the names, uses or location of various businesses 

conducted within a building or group of buildings.  

109. Double-Faced Sign. A sign with two (2) parallel, or nearly parallel, faces, back to 

back, and located no more than 24 inches from each other.  

1110. Externally Illuminated Sign. A sign which does not produce artificial light from 

within itself but which is opaque and illuminated by spotlights or floodlights not a part of 

or attached to the sign itself.  

1211. Freestanding Sign. A sign, supported by one (1) or more columns, uprights or 

braces, in or upon the ground, but not attached to any building. A sign attached to a flat 

surface not a part of the building, such as a fence or wall, shall be considered a 



Washington County, North Carolina    July 1September 10, 20214  

 Article VII: Signage Regulations ● 4  

  

freestanding sign. A monument sign, as defined herein below, shall also be considered a 

freestanding sign.  

1312. Flashing Sign. An illuminated sign on which the artificial or reflected light is not 

maintained stationary and constant in intensity and color at all times when in use.  

14. Flat Sign. See Wall Sign. 

1513. Informational Sign. A sign of a public or quasi-public nature which identifies or 

locates a hospital, public building, college, university, public parking area, historic area, 

major tourist attraction, public recreation area or similar public or quasi-public activity, 

which shall be approved on a case-by-case basis by the Planning Coordinator.  

1614. Internally Illuminated Sign. Any sign designed to radiate artificial light from 

within itself.  

1715. Marquee. A permanent structure, awning or canopy projecting beyond a building 

wall at an entrance to a building or extending along and projecting beyond the building's 

wall and generally designed and constructed to provide protection against the weather.  

1816. Monument Sign. A ground mounted sign which is mounted on a contiguous base 

having a minimum width of at least ninety percent (90%) of the sign width and its 

supporting structure and not attached to any building.   

1917. Off Premises Directional Sign. A sign which is not located on the same premises 

as the use to which it refers and which is intended to provide information as to the id   

|entity and location of use, but which does not otherwise qualify as an advertising sign.  

2018. Outdoor Advertising Sign. A freestanding or building mounted sign which bears a 

message which does not pertain to the use of the property, where the sign is located, and 

which does not identify the place of business, if any, where the sign is located as the 

purveyor of merchandise or services upon the property. Outdoor advertising signs may 

also be referred to as “billboards” or “poster panels”, but such signs shall not be 

interpreted to mean informational signs allowed by this Article.   

19. Planning Coordinator. Reference Article 9 of the Washington County Zoning Ordinance 

for Planning Coordinator definitions and duties.   

2120. Projecting Sign. A sign which is attached and perpendicular to the face of a wall 

of a building and which extends eighteen (18) inches or more from the building wall or 

face.  

2221. Real Estate Sign. A temporary sign which advertises the sale, lease, rental or 

display of the lot or building upon which such sign is displayed.  

2322. Sign. Any writing, letter work or numeral, pictorial presentation, illustration or 

decoration, emblem, device, symbol or trademark, flag, banner, pennant or any other 

device, figure or character which is employed to announce, direct attention to, identify, or 

make known, and which is visible from a public street or sidewalk or area of public 

congregation.  

2423. Sign Area. That area which outlines the outer extremities of all letters, figures, 

characters and delineations, or within an area including the outer extremities of the 

framework or background of the sign, whichever includes the larger area. The support for 

the sign background, whether it be columns, a pylon, or a building or part thereof, shall 



Washington County, North Carolina    July 1September 10, 20214  

 Article VII: Signage Regulations ● 5  

  

not be included in the sign area. The area of a cylindrical or spherical sign shall be 

computed by multiplying the diameter of the cylinder by the height of the sign.   

2524. Street Frontage. The entire length of that part of a lot that fronts on a public street, 

as defined by the plat of record for the subject lot.  

2625. Wall Sign. A building mounted sign which is attached to, painted on, inscribed 

upon, or deriving its major support from a wall and which projects less than twelve (12) 

inches from the wall.  

2726. Window Sign. A sign painted onto or physically affixed to a building window 

including upper floor windows and the glazing of doors or signs legible from any 

vehicular public right-of-way through a building window, limited to 10ten percent (10%) 

of the total glass area of the window in which they are placed.  

  

DC. GeneralSign Permit Requirements:  for All Signs: 

The following regulations shall apply generally to all signs and are in addition to the regulations 

that apply to signs for all uses: 

1. Responsibility: The owner and/or tenant of the premises and the owner and/or erector of 

the sign shall be held responsible for any violation of these regulations. 

   

1.2. Removal: No sign shall be erected, installed, used, altered, relocated, replaced or 

reconstructed until a sign permit has been issued by Tthe Planning Coordinator.  shall 

remove or cause to be removed any sign erected or maintained in conflict with these 

regulations if the owner or lessee of either the site or the sign fails to correct the 

violation within 30 days after receiving written notice of violation from 

* Freestanding signs require a permit to be issued by the Department of 

Transportation (DOT) before the Planning Coordinator. may issue a permit.   

   

2.3. Landscaping: A landscaped planting area To obtain a permit, the following 

information shall be provided aroundto the base of any freestanding or detached 

sign.Washington County Planning Office:   

 The planting area shall contain 2 times the area of the sign, be a minimum of 4 feet in width, be 

protected from vehicular encroachment and be landscaped with a combination of low-growing 

shrubs and ground covers (other than grass). 

4. Illumination standards: Externally illuminated signs shall be illuminated only by a steady, 

stationary, light source directed only at the sign without causing glare for motorists and 

pedestrians or illumination spill over on neighboring properties. Internally illuminated signs, 

where permitted, shall be illuminated only by a steady, stationary, light source internal to the sign 

without causing glare for motorists and pedestrians or illumination spill over on neighboring 

properties. 

   

5. Sight distance: The land adjoining a street intersection is to be kept clear of 

obstructions between three (3) and seven (7) feet above the ground to protect the 

visibility and safety of motorists and pedestrians. The impact ofa. A detailed 



Washington County, North Carolina    July 1September 10, 20214  

 Article VII: Signage Regulations ● 6  

  

plan to include sign placement, size and, height shall be addressed with each sign 

permit application, with, graphic information, electrical requirements, and 

licensed electrician contact information.  to be provided with the submission of a 

   

b. A site plan sufficient for the Planning Coordinator to assess an applicant’s site 

distance determination. based on setbacks, and NC Department of Transportation 

standards; refer to Zoning Ordinance, Article 8, Site Plan.   
E. Calculation of Sign Area 

1. Sign area computations: The sign area shall be calculated as the entire area within a 

single continuous perimeter, and a single plane, composed of a square, circle, rectangle or other 

geometric figure that encloses the extreme limits of the sign’s message, background and trim, 

and including all letters, figures, graphics or other elements of the sign. 

2. Sign faces calculated: The sign area shall be calculated based upon the maximum number 

of faces viewable for any single ground position, as follows: 

a. Single faced sign: one face counted. 

b. Double faced sign: each face counted. 

c. "V" sign with and angle of 45 degree or greater: two faces counted. 

d. Three dimensional sign: projected to single flat planes, all visible sign faces counted. 

e. Cylindrical sign: the sign area on each side of the cylinder shall be calculated by 

multiplying the height of the cylinder by the diameter of the cylinder. 

3. Computations of sign height 

The dimension from the top of any point on a sign, including its support structure, of any 

sign erected within thirty (30) feet of a street shall be the distance from the grade level of the 

nearest curb of the street to the top of the sign or sign structure, whichever is greater. The height 

of all signs farther than thirty (30) feet from a street shall be the distance from the grade level 

where the sign is erected to the top of the sign or sign structure whichever is greater. 

F. Exempt Signs: 

The following signs are exempted from the provisions of this article and may be erected or 

constructed without a permit but in accordance with the structural and safety requirements of the 

building code. 

1. Traffic Signs and Signals. Signs erected and maintained pursuant to and in discharge of 

any federal, state or county government function, or as may be required by law. 

2. Changing of message content. Changing a copy on a bulletin board, poster board, display 

encasement, marquee or changeable copy sign. 



Washington County, North Carolina    July 1September 10, 20214  

 Article VII: Signage Regulations ● 7  

  

3. Temporary real estate signs (Non-illuminated). Temporary, non-illuminated real estate sig  

ns advertising real estate for sale or lease shall be exempt from obtaining a sign permit. 

4. Identifying sign for official state automobile inspection stations (Non-illuminated). Non- 

illuminated signs identifying official state automobile inspection stations, provided that such 

signs shall not exceed 10 square feet in area and shall be limited to one sign for each street 

frontage. 

5. Temporary, non-illuminated construction signs. Temporary non-illuminated signs not 

more than 32 square feet in area, erected in connection with new construction work. 

6. Signs warning trespassers (Non-illuminated). Non-illuminated signs warning trespassers 

or announcing property as posted, without limitations on number or placement, limited in area to 

two square feet. 

7. Political signs: Sign applicable to federal, state or local elections are permitted as long as, 

the area of such sign shall not exceed eight (8) square feet and such signs may be erected no 

earlier than thirty (30) days prior to the date of the election and shall be removed no later than 

seven (7) days after the election. 

8. Civic/charitable signs: Signs advertising activities of civic/charitable organizations may 

be erected on any property, as long as one side of such sign shall not exceed sixteen (16) square 

feet, and such signs may be erected no earlier than four (4) weeks prior to the date of the activity 

and shall be removed no later than one (1) week after the completion of the activity. 

9. The display of a national, state or municipal flag: The display of a government flag not 

exceeding 72 square feet in area per side. 

10. Memorial tablets and historic markers: Tablets or markers erected or approved by the 

State of North Carolina or Washington County. 

11. Seasonal displays and decorations which do not advertise a product or service: Displays 

or decorations that are of a patriotic, religious or civic character on private property, not 

advertising a product or service, not displayed for a period to exceed 30 days. 

12. Handicapped parking space sign: Signs not exceeding two (2) square feet in area 

denoting reserved parking spaces for handicapped motorists. 

G. Temporary Signs 

   

c. After review and approval of the permit application, the Planning  Coordinator 

shall determine the appropriate fee based on the budgeted fee schedule approved 

by the Washington County Board of Commissioners.  Fees are based on the area 

of all visible sides of the sign, including trim area.   

   

d. Upon payment of the sign permit fee, the permit shall be issued, and work can 

commence.   

  



Washington County, North Carolina    July 1September 10, 20214  

 Article VII: Signage Regulations ● 8  

  

e. Sign permit fees, according to the annual budget, can be found below. For more 

information, please reference the Building Inspection and Zoning Permits Fee 

Schedule, Section 14.   

- Up to 100 square feet             $60.00  

- Over 100 square feet             $120.00  

- Electricity to sign              $75.00  

  

The following signs and displays may be erected for a period not to exceed thirty(30) 

days.3.   Should the Planning Coordinator determine the proposed sign is not in 

accordance with this Ordinance, the owner of the business or property may apply to 

the Planning Board for a plan review.  If a temporary sign is not removed at the 

expiration of the time limitation,The Planning Board, along with the Planning 

Coordinator may remove the sign or display and charge the cost of the removal to the 

individual applicant or responsible enterprise., after consideration of design, location, 

construction, method of operation, and the effect on nearby property, will determine if 

adverse effects can be avoided by the imposition of any special requirements or 

conditions attached to the sign permit. 

1. Civic and cultural event sign. Signs or banners not exceeding 32 square feet advertising a 

special civic or cultural event such as a fair, exposition, play, concert or meeting, sponsored by a 

governmental, civic or charitable organization. 

2. Seasonal decorative commercial sign. Special decorative signs or displays for 

commercial purposes on a commercial, industrial or manufacturing use property, where such 

sales are permitted, used for holidays and other seasonal events. 

3. Commercial promotional signs or banners. Special sales promotion displays on any 

commercial, industrial or manufacturing use property, including displays incidental to the 

opening of a new business and special one-time auctions of real or personal property in estate or 

bankruptcy sales. 

4. Public auction/sales signs (Non-illuminated): Non-illuminated signs advertising public 

auctions or sales, as differentiated from signs advertising established commercial enterprises, 

real estate sales and home/garage/yard sales, may be erected on any commercial, industrial or 

manufacturing use property. 

5. Temporary portable sign.  Temporary portable signs, such as “A-frame” signs, not 

exceeding 32 square feet in area, which are intended to identify or display 

information pertaining to an establishment for which permanent free-standing signage 

is on orderIf no remedy can be concluded, see Section I of this Ordinance for appeal 

and remedy to the Zoning Ordinance.   

    

HD. Prohibited Signs:    

   

1. Roof sign and roof projecting sign.Signs No sign which is not an integral part of the 

building design shall be fastened to and supported by or on the roof of a building and 



Washington County, North Carolina    July 1September 10, 20214  

 Article VII: Signage Regulations ● 9  

  

no projecting sign shall extend over or above the roof line or parapet wall of a 

building. 

2. Sign causing visual confusion. No sign shall be constructed, erected, or operated or 

maintained which is so located and soor illuminated as towhich provide a background 

of colored lights blending with traffic signal lights, which may confuse a motorists. 

when viewed from normal approaching position of a vehicle at a distance of 25 to 300 

feet.   

   

2. Roof signs to be fastened to or supported by any roof structure.   

   

3. Tree, utility pole and other related signs. No sign3. Any and all signs, except 

official notices of Washington County, shall be attached to trees, utility poles, public 

property, improvements within public rights of way or on any unapproved supporting 

structure.   

  

4. SAny sign projecting over a public right of way.right-of-way.   No signs shall project 

over public right-of-way without express permission of the Planning Board in 

conjunction with the approval of a site plan, except for permitted flat signs which 

may project not more than 18 inches. 
I. Nonconforming Signs: 

Any sign which was in existence at the time of the effective date of these regulations and which 

does not conform to the provisions herein, shall be deemed a lawful nonconforming sign, and 

may remain, subject to the following: 

1. A nonconforming sign must be maintained in good repair and condition. 

2. Nonconforming signs may not be enlarged, extended, modified, reconstructed or 

structurally altered except in accordance with this article. 

3. No nonconforming sign shall be moved on the same lot or building or to another lot or 

building unless the sign as relocated is modified to comply with all requirements of this 

article. 

J. Abandoned Signs: 

A sign, including its supporting structure or brackets, shall be removed by the owner or lessee of 

the premises upon which the sign is located when the business it advertises is no longer on the 

premises. Such sign, if not removed within sixty (60) days from the termination of occupancy by 

such business shall be considered to be in violation of this section, and the Planning Coordinator 

may cause the abandoned sign to be removed at the owner's expense. 

  

5. Pole signs on any residential property.    

   



Washington County, North Carolina    July 1September 10, 20214  

 Article VII: Signage Regulations ● 10  

  

6. Directory signs are prohibited in all residential zones, except Churches.    

   

KE. Permitted Signs for allIdentification in a Residential Uses:Zone:    

The following non-illuminated or externally illuminated signs shall be permitted in 

conjunction with residential uses located within the County:   

1. Freestanding Signs:    

   

All freestanding signs for these useszones shall have a maximum height of eight (8) 

feet and shall not be located within five (5) feet of any public street right- of- way, or 

property line and shall not be located within ten (10) feet of any alley, private street, 

or driveway intersecting a public or private street:   

   

a. Church, iInstitutional, or cCivic uUse identification.– One (1) freestanding 

monument sign, limited to thirty-two (32) square feet, in area for a church bulletin 

board or identifying a church, school, park, playground, library, museum, or other 

public or semiquasi-public use, recreational use or club, shall be permitted.  An 

additional area not exceeding forty-four (44) square feet may be devoted to 

architectural elements which serve as support or base for such sign and which are, 

and not a part of the message portion of the sign..  Pole signs are prohibited. 

   

b. Subdivision, project, nursing home or day care facility identification sign.b.

 Entrance to Subdivisions or Facilities – One (1) freestanding monument sign per 

street entrance identifying a single-family detached residential subdivision, or 

manufacturednursing home, daycare, facility, or mobile home park, limited in area 

to twenty-to a maximum of four (244) square feet, shall be permittedfeet by eight 

(8) feet.  Two (2) such signs aremay be permitted if erected in conjunction with a 

median (formal gateway entrance) and if approved as part of the plan of 

development or subdivision application.in the original site plan.   An additional 

area not exceeding thirty-two (32) square feet may be devoted to architectural 

elements which serve as support or base for such sign and which are not part of 

the message portion of the sign. Pole signs are prohibited. 

   

c. Bed and bBreakfast identification sign.– One (1) One freestanding sign, not 

exceeding twelve (12) square feet in area identifying a bed and breakfast, inn, or 

tourist home shall be permittedis allowed.  An additional area not exceeding 

sixteen (of 16) square feet may be devoted to architectural elements which serve 

as support or base for such sign and which are, and not a part of the message 

portion.  of the sign. 

   

2. Building Mounted Signs:    

a.   



Washington County, North Carolina    July 1September 10, 20214  

 Article VII: Signage Regulations ● 11  

  

Multi-family building identification sign.used to identify the address only.  One or 

more signsSize is limited in aggregate area to ten (10) square feet,.  to identify the 

building address, shall be permitted. 

   

3. Directory Signs.:    

   

Church directories. Directory signs are not permitted on allAllowed only for places of 

Worship in a residential uses, except for directories at churches and places of 

worship. Such directory signs shall not to exceed sixteen (16) square feet, in area.with 

An additional area not exceeding twenty-four (24) square24 feet may be devoted to 

architectural elements which serve as support or base for such sign and which are not 

a part of the message portion of the sign.area.   

4. Additional Regulations. 

Sign Height and Setback. All freestanding signs for these uses shall have a maximum 

height of eight (8) feet and shall not be located within five (5) feet of any public street right-of-

way, or property line and shall not be located within ten (10) feet of any alley, private street or 

driveway intersecting a public or private street. 

   

LF. Permitted Signs for Commercial Uses.:   

The following accessory illuminated or non-illuminated signs shall be permitted for 

commercial uses:   

1. Freestanding Signs:   

   

a. Business identification sign for a single occupant commercial building. One (1) 

freestanding or monument sign for identification of a single business 

establishment shall be permitted.limited to a Such sign shall be limited in area to 

thirty-two (32) square feet area.  An additional area not exceeding forty-four (44) 

square feet may be devoted to architectural elements which serve as support or 

base for such sign and whichand are not part of the message portion.   of the sign. 

   

b. Business identification sign for a group of two (2) or more contiguous stores or 

businesses per building and less than 60,000 gross leasable square feet. Sign area 

shall be combined into a single freestanding or monument sign advertising all 

businesses on the premises.  The combined sign shall not exceed forty-eight (48) 

square feet in area.  An additional area not exceeding sixty-four (64) square feet 

may be devoted to architectural elements which serve as support or base for such 

sign, and which are not part of the message portion of the sign. 

.  c. Business identification sign for a group of two or more contiguous stores or 

businesses per building and more than 60,000 gross leasable square feet. 



Washington County, North Carolina    July 1September 10, 20214  

 Article VII: Signage Regulations ● 12  

  

Permitted sign area shall be combined into a single freestanding or monument 

sign advertising all businesses on the premises. The combined sign shall not 

exceed forty-eight (64) square feet in area. An additional area not exceeding 

eighty- five (85) square feet may be devoted to architectural elements which serve 

as support or base for such sign and which are not part of the message portion of 

the sign. 

d. Directional signs. Directional signs limited in area to four (4) square feet shall be 

permitted as accessory signs and not included in any computation of sign area. One per entrance 

or exit not to exceed three (3) feet in height nor located within five (5) feet of any street right-of-

way line. 

 

  

2. Building Mounted Signs:   

   

a. Wall signs.One (1) sign per  Wall signs shall be permitted for each establishment on the 

premises. The combined sign area of wall, projecting, canopy, awning and marquee signs 

shall be limited to two (2) square foot of sign per linear foot of building frontage. 

b. Projecting signs. One projecting sign shall be permitted for each establishment on the 

premises. The combined sign area of wall, projectiong, canopy, awning, andor mMarquee 

signs shallwill be limited to two (2) square footfeet of sign per linear foot of building 

frontage.  Additionally each side of a projecting sign must be counted towards the total 

allowable sign area. 

c. Awning, canopy or marquee signs. Awning, canopy or marquee signs shall 

be permitted for each establishment on the premises. The combined sign area of 

wall, projecting, canopy, awning and marquee signs shall be limited to two (2) 

square foot of sign per linear foot of building frontage.   

33. Directory Signs.:    

   

a. Business directory for a single occupant commercial building. – One directory(1) 

directional sign is allowed per commercial building.  Such directory signs shall not 

exceed sixteen (16) square feet in area. Wwhen the directory is freestanding,.  anAn 

additional area not exceeding twenty-four (24) square feet may be devoted to 

architectural elements whichmay serve as support or base for such sign and which areso 

long as it shall not be part of the message portion of the sign.    

   

b. Business directory for a group of two (2) or more contiguous stores or businesses per 

building and less than 60,000 gross leasable square feet. – One (1) directory sign is 

allowed., Such directory signs shall not to exceed twenty four (24) square feet in area.  

When a directory is free standing, an additional area not exceeding thirty-six (36) square 

feet may be devoted to architectural elements which serve as support or base for such 

sign and which areso long as it shall not be part of the message portion of the sign.    

   



Washington County, North Carolina    July 1September 10, 20214  

 Article VII: Signage Regulations ● 13  

  

c4. Business directory for a group of two or more contiguous stores or businesses per 

building and more than 60,000 gross leasable square feet.Electronic, Illuminated, and 

Digital Signs    

  One directory sign is allowed. 

Signs that use technologies such as LCD, LED and Projection to display content such 

as digital images, video, streaming media, and information. Digital signs are 

prohibited except for the following:   

   

a. Attached, as a wall sign, not exceeding 150 square feet in area, per sign, to a civic 

building where the civic building contains one (1) or more places of public  

assembly having a single-room seating capacity of no less than 1,000. No more 

than one (1) digital sign shall be permitted on a building façade facing the same 

public street.   

   

b. As a ground sign, not exceeding 250 square feet in area erected on a supporting structure, 

mast, post, or pole no more than 20 feet in height, on a lot containing (i) a civic building 

where the civic building contains one (1) or more places of public assembly; or (ii) an 

outdoor sports or entertainment facility having a seating capacity of no less than 2,000. 

No more than one (1) digital ground sign shall be permitted on a lot for each public street 

abutting the lot. Subject to the prior limitation, multiple signs may face the same public 

street. A ground sign is not attached, supported or suspended to or from any building or 

structure.   

   

c. Illuminated and digital signs shall be permitted to provide information such as time, 

temperature, date, and public announcements related to the business on-site only.   

 Such directory signs shalli. Such signs shall be permitted only as part of an otherwise 

permitted sign or in conjunction with a permitted replacement of an existing sign, 

provided that the illuminated portion shall be at least 15% of the total square footage area 

of the sign and shall not exceed thirty-two (32)35% of the total square feet infootage 

area. Whenof the directory is freestanding, an additional area not exceeding forty-eight 

(48) square feet may be devoted to architectural elements which serve as support or base 

for such sign and which are not part of the message portion of the sign.sign.   

   

ii. Messages on such signs shall not change more than seven (7) times per minute. In no 

case shall an animated presentation or animated change of frame be allowed.   

   

iii. Illuminated signs, should it be an addition to an existing sign, shall be comparable in 

composition, durability, and workmanship to the existing sign.   

   

d. Digital signs shall not display any strobe lighting effects. For the purposes of this section, 

strobe lighting effects are bright flashes of light at a frequency of greater than 1Hz ((or 

one (1) flash of bright light per second)) where the brightness of the flashing light is two 



Washington County, North Carolina    July 1September 10, 20214  

 Article VII: Signage Regulations ● 14  

  

(2) times brighter than the signs illumination immediately prior to and subsequent to the 

strobe flash of light.   

   

e. Digital signs may not cause distraction or safety hazards to drivers. For the purposes of 

this section, digital signs shall not contain flashing lights (as outlined in F4d), bright 

illuminating colors that blend in with traffic lights (see D1) and may not be erected 

within 200 square feet of a roadway. Washington County reserves the right to declare a 

sign a distraction or safety concern, and therefore a violation of the Washington County 

Sign Ordinance, at any given time.    

   

f. Digital, electronic, and illuminated signs shall be limited to those lighted internally with 

glass or plastic faces bearing the advertisement; provided however, that exposed neon 

tubing and exposed incandescent or other bulbs not exceeding 15 watts each shall be 

permitted.   

   

g. The following materials shall be strictly prohibited in the use of any digital sign:    

i. Flame (even as a source of light); and   

   

ii. Exposed neon lighting.   

   

5. Window Signs:  

   

Signs displayed in windows of store fronts shall not cover greater than 10 percent of 

the total area of the windows of such store fronts and shall not count toward the total 

area permitted for wall signs.   

   

46. Additional Regulations.:  

   

a. Individual free-standing signs for individual shopping center tenants shall not be 

permitted.  For the purposes of this section, lawfully subdivided out parcels which have 

been depicted on the approved shopping center site plan shall be considered as separate 

parcels and may be signed as such.   

   

b. Sign Materials:   

i. General. All signs shall be constructed of weather-resistant material designed expressly 

for signs.   

   

ii. Pole style ground signs. All pole style ground signs with support(s), upright(s), 

bracing(s), or framework(s) that include a pole encasement shall meet the following 

requirements with the exception of pole style ground signs for street signs, manufactured 

home park signs, interstate signs, and historical identification signs which shall be 

exempt from the requirements of this section.   



Washington County, North Carolina    July 1September 10, 20214  

 Article VII: Signage Regulations ● 15  

  

   

1. The support(s), upright(s), bracing(s), or framework(s) shall be 

encased in an ornamental shell of stone, brick, ornamental 

metal, or similar materials, and shall be a minimum width of 

one-fourth of the width of the sign face.   

   

2. The sign shall be constructed of an external support structure 

including stone, brick, ornamental metal, or similar materials, 

provided that the maximum number of supports, uprights,  



Washington County, North Carolina    July 1September 10, 20214  

 Article VII: Signage Regulations ● 16  

  

bracings, or frameworks extending between grade and the base 

of the sign face shall not exceed two (2).    

   

bc. Gasoline pump island signs at gasoline sales establishments are subject to the following 

additional conditions:   

ai. Two (2) non-illuminated “self-serve"” or “full-serve” signs per pump island not to 

exceed two (2) square feet each; and   

   

bii. One (1) fuel price or promotional information sign per fuel pump not to exceed two (2) 

square feet.   

M.   

G. Permitted Signs for Manufacturing and Industrial UsesCommercial and Corridor 

Zones:    

  

The following illuminated or non-illuminated signs shall be permitted for manufacturing 

and industrial usescommercial and corridor zones:   

  

1.  Freestanding Signs:   

  

a. Business identification sign for a commercial  For buildings with 20,000 gross 

Lleasable sSquare fFeet or lLess.:  One freestanding or monument sign for  

i.  iIdentification of a single business establishment shall be permitted.sign: 

48 square feet with 64 feet of frame or support, Such sign shall be 

limited in area to forty-eight (48) square feet. An additional area not 

exceeding sixty-four (64) square feet may be devoted to architectural 

elements which serve as support or base for such sign and which are not 

part of the message.   portion of the sign. 

   

b. For buildings with 20,000 to 100,000 Leasable Square Feet:   

b. Business i.  iIdentification sign: for a commercial building with more 

than 20,000 gross leasable square feet but less than 100,000 gross 

leasable square feet. Permitted sign area shall be combined into a single 

freestanding sign advertising all businesses on the premises. The 

combined sign shall not exceed sixty-four (64) square feet in area.64 

square feet with 96 feet of frame or support, An additional area not 

exceeding ninety-six (96) square feet may be devoted to architectural 

elements which serve as support or base for such sign and which are not 

part of the message portion.  of the sign. 

   

c. For buildings with 100,000 or more Leasable Square feet:    



Washington County, North Carolina    July 1September 10, 20214  

 Article VII: Signage Regulations ● 17  

  

c. Businessi.  All Combined sites in building iIdentification sign: for a 

commercial building with more than 100,000 gross leasable square feet. 

Permitted sign area shall be combined into a single freestanding sign 

advertising all businesses on the premises. The combined sign shall not 

exceed sixty-four (64) square feet in area.64 square feet with 133 feet of 

frame or support, An additional area not exceeding one hundred and 

thirty-three (133) square feet may be devoted to architectural elements 

which serve as support or base for such sign and which are not part of 

the message portion.  of the sign. 

   

d. d. Directional signs.:    

i.  Directional signs limited in area to eight (8) square feet shall be 

permitted as accessory signs and not included in any computation of sign 

area. One (1) sign per entrance or exit not to exceed eight (8) feet in 

height nor located within ten (10) feet of any street right- of- way line.   

2.  Building Mounted Signs: – Commercial and Corridor Zones:    

a. Wall signs. One wall signs shall be permitted for each establishment on the premises. The 

combined sign area of wall, projecting, canopy, awning and marquee signs shall be limited to 

two (2) square foot of sign per linear foot of building frontage. 

b. Projecting signs. One projecting sign shall be permitted for each establishment 

on the premises.a. The combined sign area ofOne (1) sign per wall, projectiong, 

canopy, awning and marquee signs shall be limited to two (2) square foot of sign 

per linear foot of building frontage., or marquee is allowed and  Additionally 

each side of a projecting sign must be counted towards the total allowable sign 

area. 

c. Awning, canopy or marquee signs. One awning, canopy or marquee sign shall be 

permitted for each establishment on the premises. The combined sign area of 

wall, projecting, canopy, awning and marquee signs shall be limited to two (2) 

square footfeet of sign per linear foot of building frontage is allowed.   

   

NH. Outdoor Advertising Signs:   

a.   

All oOutdoor advertising signs will be erected in accordance with North Carolina 

Department of Transportation’s Regulations for the Control of Outdoor Advertising in 

North Carolina.Control Act. Permits for electrical service installation and construction 

based on the size of the sign are required.   

O. Special Sign Exceptions: 

1. Cause for Exceptions: In order to provide for adjustments in the relative locations of 

signs of the same or different classifications, to promote the usefulness of these regulations as 

instruments of fact finding, interpretation, application and adjustment, and to supply the 



Washington County, North Carolina    July 1September 10, 20214  

 Article VII: Signage Regulations ● 18  

  

necessary elasticity to their efficient operation, special sign exceptions may be granted by the 

Planning Board, as permitted by the terms of these regulations, after notice and a public hearing 

as provided for in these regulations. Towards this end, an owner of a property or business may 

apply to the Planning Board for a special sign exception permit. 

2. Considerations for Exceptions: In considering an application for a special sign exception, 

the Planning Board, upon recommendation from the Planning Coordinator, shall give due regard 

to the specific guidelines and standards of this article and those listed elsewhere in these 

regulations, and in general to the nature and condition of adjacent uses and structures, and 

probable effect upon them of the proposed exception. The Planning Board shall also take into 

account the special characteristics, design, location, construction, method of operation, effect on 

nearby properties or any other aspects of the particular sign that may be proposed by the 

applicant. 

   

I. Exempt Signs:   

  

The following signs are exempted from the provisions of this article, and may be erected 

or constructed without a permit, but in accordance with the structural and safety 

requirements of the building code.:   

1. Traffic Ssigns and Ssignals. Signs erected and maintained pursuant to and in 

discharge of any federal, state, or county government function, or as may be required 

by law.  

2. Changing of message content of changeable copy sign   

3. Temporary, non-illuminated real estate sale or lease signs   

4. Non-illuminated identifying sign for official state automobile inspection station not to 

exceed 10 square feet   

5. Temporary, non-illuminated construction signs, not more than 32 square feet in area 

erected for new construction work   

6. Non-illuminated No Trespassing signs, limited in area to two (2) square feet   

7. Handicapped parking space sign not exceeding two (2) square feet in area   

8. Political signs not exceeding eight (8) square feet and such signs may be, erected no 

earlier than thirty (30) days prior to the date of the election, and shallmust be removed 

no later than seven (7) days after the election.    

89. Civic/charitable signs: SignsTemporary advertising activities of civic/charitable 

organizations may be erected on any property, as long as one (1) side of such sign 

shall not exceed sixteen (16) square feet, and such signs may be erected no earlier 

than four (4) weeks prior to the date of the activityevent, and shallmust be removed 

no later than one   

(1) week after the completion of the activity.   

9.10.  The dDisplay of a nNational, sState, or mMunicipal flag: The display of a 

government flag not exceeding 72 square feet in area per side.   



Washington County, North Carolina    July 1September 10, 20214  

 Article VII: Signage Regulations ● 19  

  

1011. Memorial plaques such as tablets and historic markers: Tablets or markers erected 

or approved by the State of North Carolina or Washington County.   

1112. Seasonal displays and decorations which do not advertise a product or service.    

13. Identification signs: Not to exceed one (1) square foot in display area bearing only 

addresses or names of occupants of the premises and located on privately owned 

property.   

14. Instructional signs: Erected on private property, not to exceed six (6) square feet in 

display area, erected strictly for the direction, safety or convenience of the public, 

including signs which identify restrooms, parking area entrances or exits, freight 

entrances, and similar devices, warning, danger, and no trespassing signs.   

15. Real Estate signs: Signs pertaining to realty on the premises offered for sale or rent, 

not exceeding four (4) square feet in area and not illuminated. Such a sign may be 

placed not closer to a front property line than ten (10) feet. There shall be a limit of 

one (1) such sign per street frontage.   

16. Signs advertising agricultural products produced on the premises: Not to exceed 16 

square feet in area. There shall be a limit of one (1) such sign per street frontage.   

17. Any and all signs erected before the implementation of this Article.   

J. Appeals and Remedies:   

   

3. Adverse Effect: If it should find, after the hearing, that the proposed sign: (a) will not 

adversely affect the community appearance, health, safety, or welfare of persons residing or 

working on the premises or in the neighborhood or corridor; (b) will not unreasonably 

impair the desired character of the property, corridor or adjacent properties; (c.) nor be 

incompatible with the Land Use Plan of Washington County, (d) nor be likely to reduce or 

impair the value of buildings or property in surrounding areas, (e.) but that such sign will 

be in substantial accordance with the general purpose and objectives of this article, 

thenThis Ordinance endeavors to create a process by which the Planning Coordinator, the  

Planning Board, upon consideration of recommendation fromand the Board of Adjustments 

can address and implement zoning and  land use in such a way as to reconcile the desires of 

future applicants with the health,  

safety, and general welfare interests of the County.  However, there may be special and 

unusual circumstances which arise within the administrative process that dictate that an 

application receives special attention in pursuit of fairness and sound planning practices.  

Therefore, variances to the application of this Ordinance which are outside the purview 

of the Planning Coordinator, may grant the exception and authorize the issuance, of a 

special sign exception permit. and  

4. Conditions for Mitigation: In those instances where the Planning Board finds that 

the proposed sign may be likely to have an adverse effect as above, the Planning Board 

shall determine whether such effect can be avoided by the imposition of any special 

requirements or conditions with respect to location, design, construction, equipment, 

maintenance or operation, in addition to those expressly stipulated in this article, and may 



Washington County, North Carolina    July 1September 10, 20214  

 Article VII: Signage Regulations ● 20  

  

grant a special sign exception subject to such reasonable conditions and limitations as the 

case may require, including but not limited to limitation as to size, type, color, graphic 

design, location or illumination., the Board of Adjustment is provided as a means of 

increasing the flexibility of the Ordinance. Please reference Article 10 of the Washington 

County Zoning Ordinance for appeal requirements and procedures.   

5. Application Fee: An application fee to be submitted with any special sign exception 

application shall be established by the County. 

All references to special Exceptions deleted based on GS16-D 

  

K. Enforcement:  

  

  This Article will be enforced by the County Manager and Planning Coordinator. For more 

information about enforcement authority or procedures of this Article, please reference 

Article 9F and Article 9H of this Zoning Ordinance.   

  

   



Washington County, North Carolina  September 10, 2024 

 Article VII: Signage Regulations ● 1 
 

Article 7:  

SIGNAGE REGULATIONS  

Purpose and Intent                    2 

Definitions                     2 

Sign Permit Requirements                              4 

Prohibited Signs                     4 

Permitted Signs for Identification in A Residential Zone                5 

Permitted Signs for Commercial Use                  6 

Permitted Signs for Commercial and Corridor Zones              10 

Outdoor Advertising Signs                 11 

Exempt Signs                   11 

Appeals and Remedies                 12 

Enforcement                   12 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



Washington County, North Carolina  September 10, 2024 

 Article VII: Signage Regulations ● 2 
 

A. Purpose and Intent:  
  
The purpose of this article is to regulate the size, location, height and construction of 
signs for public observance; to protect the public health, safety, convenience and general 
welfare; to facilitate the creation of a convenient, attractive and harmonious community, 
to protect property values and to further economic development objectives of Washington 
County.  Signs subject to these regulations include all exterior signs and permanent 
interior window signs which are placed for exterior observance.  To these ends, these 
regulations are intended to promote signs which are:  
  
1. An enhancement to the appearance of the County’s corridors, residential 

neighborhoods and business areas;  
  

2. Legible and appropriate to the activity to which they pertain;  
  

3. Constructed and maintained in a structurally sound and attractive condition;   
  

4. Limited to the specific use or business that is in operation on the premises.  
 
 

B. Definitions:  
 
For the purpose of this Article, terms and words pertaining to signs are hereby defined: 
 
1. Awning Sign. A sign painted or printed on, attached flat or sewn onto valance or 

body of any awning. 
2. Billboard Sign. A sign used as an outdoor display for the purpose of advertising or 

promoting a business, service, activity or products, which is not located on the 
premises on which a sign is situated. Also referred to as Outdoor Advertising Sign. 

3. Building Mounted Sign. A sign attached to, painted on, inscribed upon or deriving its 
major support from a building, including a wall sign, a projecting sign, a canopy 
sign, marquee or an awning sign. 

4. Bulletin Board. A sign that identifies an institution or organization on the premises of 
which it is located and that contains the name of the institution or organization, the 
names of individuals connected with it and general announcements of events or 
activities occurring at the institution or similar message. 

5. Canopy Sign. A sign attached to or displayed on a canopy. For the purpose of this 
Article, a canopy is a permanent, roof-like structure of rigid materials either 
supported by and extending from a building or free-standing, including a marquee. 

6. Changeable Copy Sign. A sign or part of a sign that is designed so that characters, 
letters or illustrations can be changed or rearranged without altering the face or 
surface of the sign. 



Washington County, North Carolina  September 10, 2024 

 Article VII: Signage Regulations ● 3 
 

7. Directional Sign. An on-premises sign giving directions, instructions, and/or facility 
information, but containing no advertising copy (i.e. parking, exit or entrance signs). 

8. Directory Sign. A subsidiary sign listing the names, uses or location of various 
businesses conducted within a building or group of buildings. 

9. Double-Faced Sign. A sign with two (2) parallel, or nearly parallel, faces, back to 
back, and located no more than 24 inches from each other. 

10. Externally Illuminated Sign. A sign which does not produce artificial light from 
within itself but which is opaque and illuminated by spotlights or floodlights not a 
part of or attached to the sign itself. 

11. Freestanding Sign. A sign, supported by one (1) or more columns, uprights or braces, 
in or upon the ground, but not attached to any building. A sign attached to a flat 
surface not a part of the building, such as a fence or wall, shall be considered a 
freestanding sign. A monument sign, as defined herein below, shall also be 
considered a freestanding sign. 

12. Flashing Sign. An illuminated sign on which the artificial or reflected light is not 
maintained stationary and constant in intensity and color at all times when in use. 

13. Informational Sign. A sign of a public or quasi-public nature which identifies or 
locates a hospital, public building, college, university, public parking area, historic 
area, major tourist attraction, public recreation area or similar public or quasi-public 
activity, which shall be approved on a case-by-case basis by the Planning 
Coordinator. 

14. Internally Illuminated Sign. Any sign designed to radiate artificial light from within 
itself. 

15. Marquee. A permanent structure, awning or canopy projecting beyond a building wall 
at an entrance to a building or extending along and projecting beyond the building's 
wall and generally designed and constructed to provide protection against the 
weather. 

16. Monument Sign. A ground mounted sign which is mounted on a contiguous base 
having a minimum width of at least ninety percent (90%) of the sign width and its 
supporting structure and not attached to any building.  

17. Off Premises Directional Sign. A sign which is not located on the same premises as 
the use to which it refers and which is intended to provide information as to the 
identity and location of use, but which does not otherwise qualify as an advertising 
sign. 

18. Outdoor Advertising Sign. A freestanding or building mounted sign which bears a 
message which does not pertain to the use of the property, where the sign is located, 
and which does not identify the place of business, if any, where the sign is located as 
the purveyor of merchandise or services upon the property. Outdoor advertising signs 
may also be referred to as “billboards” or “poster panels”, but such signs shall not be 
interpreted to mean informational signs allowed by this Article.  

19. Planning Coordinator. Reference Article 9 of the Washington County Zoning 
Ordinance for Planning Coordinator definitions and duties.  



Washington County, North Carolina  September 10, 2024 

 Article VII: Signage Regulations ● 4 
 

20. Projecting Sign. A sign which is attached and perpendicular to the face of a wall of a 
building and which extends 18 inches or more from the building wall or face. 

21. Real Estate Sign. A temporary sign which advertises the sale, lease, rental or display 
of the lot or building upon which such sign is displayed. 

22. Sign. Any writing, letter work or numeral, pictorial presentation, illustration or 
decoration, emblem, device, symbol or trademark, flag, banner, pennant or any other 
device, figure or character which is employed to announce, direct attention to, 
identify, or make known, and which is visible from a public street or sidewalk or area 
of public congregation. 

23. Sign Area. That area which outlines the outer extremities of all letters, figures, 
characters and delineations, or within an area including the outer extremities of the 
framework or background of the sign, whichever includes the larger area. The 
support for the sign background, whether it be columns, a pylon, or a building or part 
thereof, shall not be included in the sign area. The area of a cylindrical or spherical 
sign shall be computed by multiplying the diameter of the cylinder by the height of 
the sign.  

24. Street Frontage. The entire length of that part of a lot that fronts on a public street, as 
defined by the plat of record for the subject lot. 

25. Wall Sign. A building mounted sign which is attached to, painted on, inscribed upon, 
or deriving its major support from a wall and which projects less than 12 inches from 
the wall. 

26. Window Sign. A sign painted onto or physically affixed to a building window 
including upper floor windows and the glazing of doors or signs legible from any 
vehicular public right-of-way through a building window, limited to ten percent 
(10%) of the total glass area of the window in which they are placed. 

 
C. Sign Permit Requirements:  

  
1. No sign shall be erected, installed, used, altered, relocated, replaced or reconstructed 

until a sign permit has been issued by the Planning Coordinator.  
* Freestanding signs require a permit to be issued by the Department of 
Transportation (DOT) before the Planning Coordinator may issue a permit.  

  
2. To obtain a permit, the following information shall be provided to the Washington 

County Planning Office:  
  

a. A detailed plan to include sign placement, size, height, graphic information, 
electrical requirements, and licensed electrician contact information.  
  

b. A site plan sufficient to assess site distance determination based on setbacks, and 
NC Department of Transportation standards; refer to Zoning Ordinance, Article 8, 
Site Plan.  



Washington County, North Carolina  September 10, 2024 

 Article VII: Signage Regulations ● 5 
 

  
c. After review and approval of the permit application, the Planning  

Coordinator shall determine the appropriate fee based on the budgeted fee 
schedule approved by the Washington County Board of Commissioners.  Fees are 
based on the area of all visible sides of the sign, including trim area.  

  

d. Upon payment of the sign permit fee, the permit shall be issued, and work can 
commence.  
 

e. Sign permit fees, according to the annual budget, can be found below. For more 
information, please reference the Building Inspection and Zoning Permits Fee 
Schedule, Section 14.  
- Up to 100 square feet       $60.00 
- Over 100 square feet       $120.00 
- Electricity to sign        $75.00 

 
3.   Should the Planning Coordinator determine the proposed sign is not in accordance 

with this Ordinance, the owner of the business or property may apply to the Planning 
Board for a plan review.  The Planning Board, along with the Planning Coordinator, 
after consideration of design, location, construction, method of operation, and the 
effect on nearby property, will determine if adverse effects can be avoided by the 
imposition of any special requirements or conditions attached to the sign permit.  If 
no remedy can be concluded, see Section I of this Ordinance for appeal and remedy to 
the Zoning Ordinance.  

   
D.  Prohibited Signs:   

  
1. Signs located or illuminated which provide a background of colored lights blending 

with traffic signal lights which may confuse motorists.  
  

2. Roof signs to be fastened to or supported by any roof structure.  
  

3. Any and all signs, except official notices of Washington County, attached to trees, 
utility poles, public property, or on any unapproved supporting structure.  

 
4. Any sign projecting over a public right-of-way.   

 
5. Pole signs on any residential property.   

  
6. Directory signs are prohibited in all residential zones, except Churches.   
  



Washington County, North Carolina  September 10, 2024 

 Article VII: Signage Regulations ● 6 
 

E. Permitted Signs for Identification in a Residential Zone:   
  
1. Freestanding Signs:   

  
All freestanding signs for these zones shall have a maximum height of eight (8) feet 
and shall not be located within five (5) feet of public street right of way or property 
line and shall not be located within ten (10) feet of any alley, private street, or 
driveway intersecting a public or private street:  
  
a. Church, Institutional, or Civic Use – One (1) freestanding monument sign, limited 

to 32 square feet, for a church, school, park, playground, library, museum, or 
quasi-public use.  An additional area not exceeding 44 square feet may be devoted 
to architectural elements which serve as support or base, and not a part of the 
message portion.  
  

b. Entrance to Subdivisions or Facilities – One (1) freestanding monument sign per 
entrance identifying a subdivision, nursing home, daycare, facility, or mobile 
home park, limited to a maximum of four (4) feet by eight (8) feet.  Two (2) may 
be permitted in conjunction with a median and if approved in the original site 
plan.   
  

c. Bed and Breakfast – One (1) sign, not exceeding 12 square feet in area identifying 
a bed and breakfast, inn, or tourist home is allowed.  An additional area of 16 
square feet may be devoted to architectural elements which serve as support or 
base, and not a part of the message portion.  
  

2. Building Mounted Signs:   
  
Multi-family building identification used to identify the address only.  Size is limited 
in aggregate area to ten (10) square feet.  

  
3. Directory Signs:   

  
Allowed only for places of Worship in a residential use, not to exceed 16 square feet, 
with additional 24 feet devoted to architectural elements which serve as support or 
base which are not a part of the message area.  
  

F. Permitted Signs for Commercial Use:  

The following accessory illuminated or non-illuminated signs shall be permitted for 
commercial use:  

1. Freestanding Signs:  



Washington County, North Carolina  September 10, 2024 

 Article VII: Signage Regulations ● 7 
 

  
a. One (1) freestanding or monument sign for identification of a single business 

establishment shall be limited to a 32 square feet area.  An additional area not 
exceeding 44 square feet may be devoted to elements which serve as support or 
base and are not part of the message portion.   
  

b. Business identification sign for a group of two (2) or more contiguous stores or 
businesses per building and less than 60,000 gross leasable square feet shall be 
combined into a single freestanding or monument sign advertising all businesses 
on the premises.  The combined sign shall not exceed 48 square feet in area.  An 
additional area not exceeding 64 square feet may be devoted to elements which 
serve as support or base for such sign, and which are not part of the message 
portion.  

 
2. Building Mounted Signs:  

  
a.   One (1) sign per wall, projection, canopy, awning, or Marquee will be limited to 

two (2) square feet of sign per linear foot of building frontage.  
  

3. Directory Signs:   
  
a. Business directory for a single occupant commercial building – One (1) 

directional sign is allowed per commercial building.  Such directory signs shall 
not exceed 16 square feet in area when the directory is freestanding.  An 
additional area not exceeding 24 square feet may be devoted to architectural 
elements may serve as support or base for such sign so long as it shall not be part 
of the message portion of the sign.   
  

b. Business directory for a group of two (2) or more contiguous stores or businesses 
per building and less than 60,000 gross leasable square feet – One (1) directory 
sign is allowed, not to exceed 24 square feet in area.  When a directory is free 
standing, an additional area not exceeding 36 square feet may serve as support or 
base for such sign so long as it shall not be part of the message portion of the sign.   

  
4. Electronic, Illuminated, and Digital Signs   

  
Signs that use technologies such as LCD, LED and Projection to display content such 
as digital images, video, streaming media, and information. Digital signs are 
prohibited except for the following:  
  
a. Attached, as a wall sign, not exceeding 150 square feet in area, per sign, to a civic 

building where the civic building contains one (1) or more places of public 



Washington County, North Carolina  September 10, 2024 

 Article VII: Signage Regulations ● 8 
 

assembly having a single-room seating capacity of no less than 1,000. No more 
than one (1) digital sign shall be permitted on a building façade facing the same 
public street.  
  

b. As a ground sign, not exceeding 250 square feet in area erected on a supporting 
structure, mast, post, or pole no more than 20 feet in height, on a lot containing (i) 
a civic building where the civic building contains one (1) or more places of public 
assembly; or (ii) an outdoor sports or entertainment facility having a seating 
capacity of no less than 2,000. No more than one (1) digital ground sign shall be 
permitted on a lot for each public street abutting the lot. Subject to the prior 
limitation, multiple signs may face the same public street. A ground sign is not 
attached, supported or suspended to or from any building or structure.  

  
c. Illuminated and digital signs shall be permitted to provide information such as 

time, temperature, date, and public announcements related to the business on-site 
only.  

i. Such signs shall be permitted only as part of an otherwise permitted sign 
or in conjunction with a permitted replacement of an existing sign, 
provided that the illuminated portion shall be at least 15% of the total 
square footage area of the sign and shall not exceed 35% of the total 
square footage area of the sign.  

  
ii. Messages on such signs shall not change more than seven (7) times per 

minute. In no case shall an animated presentation or animated change of 
frame be allowed.  

  
iii. Illuminated signs, should it be an addition to an existing sign, shall be 

comparable in composition, durability, and workmanship to the existing 
sign.  

  
d. Digital signs shall not display any strobe lighting effects. For the purposes of this 

section, strobe lighting effects are bright flashes of light at a frequency of greater 
than 1Hz ((or one (1) flash of bright light per second)) where the brightness of the 
flashing light is two (2) times brighter than the signs illumination immediately 
prior to and subsequent to the strobe flash of light.  
  

e. Digital signs may not cause distraction or safety hazards to drivers. For the 
purposes of this section, digital signs shall not contain flashing lights (as outlined 
in F4d), bright illuminating colors that blend in with traffic lights (see D1) and 
may not be erected within 200 square feet of a roadway. Washington County 
reserves the right to declare a sign a distraction or safety concern, and therefore a 
violation of the Washington County Sign Ordinance, at any given time.   

  



Washington County, North Carolina  September 10, 2024 

 Article VII: Signage Regulations ● 9 
 

f. Digital, electronic, and illuminated signs shall be limited to those lighted 
internally with glass or plastic faces bearing the advertisement; provided however, 
that exposed neon tubing and exposed incandescent or other bulbs not exceeding 
15 watts each shall be permitted.  

  
g. The following materials shall be strictly prohibited in the use of any digital sign:   

i. Flame (even as a source of light); and  
  

ii. Exposed neon lighting.  
  

5. Window Signs: 
  
Signs displayed in windows of store fronts shall not cover greater than 10 percent of 
the total area of the windows of such store fronts and shall not count toward the total 
area permitted for wall signs.  
  

6. Additional Regulations: 
  
a. Individual freestanding signs for individual shopping center tenants shall not be 

permitted.  For the purpose of this section, lawfully subdivided out parcels which 
have been depicted on the approved shopping center site plan shall be considered 
as separate parcels and may be signed as such  
  

b. Sign Materials:  
i. General. All signs shall be constructed of weather-resistant material 

designed expressly for signs.  
  

ii. Pole style ground signs. All pole style ground signs with support(s), 
upright(s), bracing(s), or framework(s) that include a pole encasement 
shall meet the following requirements with the exception of pole style 
ground signs for street signs, manufactured home park signs, interstate 
signs, and historical identification signs which shall be exempt from the 
requirements of this section.  

  
1. The support(s), upright(s), bracing(s), or framework(s) shall be 

encased in an ornamental shell of stone, brick, ornamental 
metal, or similar materials, and shall be a minimum width of 
one-fourth of the width of the sign face.  

  
2. The sign shall be constructed of an external support structure 

including stone, brick, ornamental metal, or similar materials, 
provided that the maximum number of supports, uprights, 



Washington County, North Carolina  September 10, 2024 

 Article VII: Signage Regulations ● 10 
 

bracings, or frameworks extending between grade and the base 
of the sign face shall not exceed two (2).   

  
c. Gasoline pump island signs at gasoline sales establishments are subject to the 

following additional conditions:  
i. Two (2) non-illuminated “self-serve” or “full-serve” signs per pump 

island not to exceed two (2) square feet each; and  
  

ii. One (1) fuel price or promotional information sign per fuel pump not to 
exceed two (2) square feet.  

  
G. Permitted Signs for Commercial and Corridor Zones:   

 
The following illuminated or non-illuminated signs shall be permitted for commercial 
and corridor zones:  
 
1. Freestanding Signs:  

 
a. For buildings with 20,000 Leasable Square Feet or Less:  

i. Identification sign: 48 square feet with 64 feet of frame or support, not 
part of message.   
  

b. For buildings with 20,000 to 100,000 Leasable Square Feet:  
i. Identification sign: 64 square feet with 96 feet of frame or support, not 

part of message portion.  
  

c. For buildings with 100,000 or more Leasable Square feet:   
i. All Combined sites in building Identification sign: 64 square feet with 

133 feet of frame or support, not part of message portion.  
  

d. Directional signs:   
i. Directional signs limited in area to eight (8) square feet shall be 

permitted as accessory signs and not included in any computation of sign 
area. One (1) sign per entrance or exit not to exceed eight (8) feet in 
height nor located within ten (10) feet of any street right of way line.  

2. Building Mounted Signs – Commercial and Corridor Zones:   

a. One (1) sign per wall, projection, canopy, awning, or marquee is allowed and 
limited to two (2) square feet of sign per linear foot of building frontage is 
allowed.  

  



Washington County, North Carolina  September 10, 2024 

 Article VII: Signage Regulations ● 11 
 

H. Outdoor Advertising Signs:  
  

All Outdoor advertising signs will be erected in accordance with North Carolina 
Department of Transportation’s Outdoor Advertising Control Act. Permits for electrical 
service installation and construction based on the size of the sign are required.  

  
I. Exempt Signs:  
 

The following signs are exempt from the provisions of this article, and may be erected or 
constructed without a permit, but in accordance with the structural and safety 
requirements of the building code:  

1. Traffic signs and signals erected and maintained pursuant to and in discharge of any 
federal, state, or county government function  

2. Changing of message content of changeable copy sign  
3. Temporary, non-illuminated real estate sale or lease signs  
4. Non-illuminated identifying sign for official state automobile inspection station not to 

exceed 10 square feet  
5. Temporary, non-illuminated construction signs, not more than 32 square feet in area 

erected for new construction work  
6. Non-illuminated No Trespassing signs, limited in area to two (2) square feet  
7. Handicapped parking space sign not exceeding two (2) square feet in area  
8. Political signs not exceeding eight (8) square feet, erected no earlier than 30 days 

prior to election, and must be removed no later than seven (7) days after election.   
9. Civic/charitable signs: Temporary advertising activities may be erected on any 

property, as long as one (1) side of such sign shall not exceed 16 square feet, no 
earlier than four (4) weeks prior to the event, and must be removed no later than one  
(1) week after the activity  

10. Display of a National, State, or Municipal flag not exceeding 72 square feet in area 
per side  

11. Memorial plaques such as tablets and historic markers: Tables or markers erected or 
approved by the State of North Carolina or Washington County.  

12. Seasonal displays and decorations which do not advertise a product or service.   
13. Identification signs: Not to exceed one (1) square foot in display area bearing only 

addresses or names of occupants of the premises and located on privately owned 
property.  

14. Instructional signs: Erected on private property, not to exceed six (6) square feet in 
display area, erected strictly for the direction, safety or convenience of the public, 
including signs which identify restrooms, parking area entrances or exits, freight 
entrances, and similar devices, warning, danger, and no trespassing signs.  

15. Real Estate signs: Signs pertaining to realty on the premises offered for sale or rent, 
not exceeding four (4) square feet in area and not illuminated. Such a sign may be 



Washington County, North Carolina  September 10, 2024 

 Article VII: Signage Regulations ● 12 
 

placed not closer to a front property line than ten (10) feet. There shall be a limit of 
one (1) such sign per street frontage.  

16. Signs advertising agricultural products produced on the premises: Not to exceed 16 
square feet in area. There shall be a limit of one (1) such sign per street frontage.  

17. Any and all signs erected before the implementation of this Article.  

J.  Appeals and Remedies:  
  

This Ordinance endeavors to create a process by which the Planning Coordinator, the  
Planning Board, and the Board of Adjustments can address and implement zoning and  
land use in such a way as to reconcile the desires of future applicants with the health, 
safety, and general welfare interests of the County.  However, there may be special and 
unusual circumstances which arise within the administrative process that dictate that an 
application receives special attention in pursuit of fairness and sound planning practices.  
Therefore, variances to the application of this Ordinance which are outside the purview 
of the Planning Coordinator and the Planning Board, the Board of Adjustment is provided 
as a means of increasing the flexibility of the Ordinance. Please reference Article 10 of 
the Washington County Zoning Ordinance for appeal requirements and procedures.  
 

K.  Enforcement: 
 
 This Article will be enforced by the County Manager and Planning Coordinator. For more 

information about enforcement authority or procedures of this Article, please reference 
Article 9F and Article 9H of this Zoning Ordinance.  

 
  



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  6 
 
       DATE:  October 7, 2024 
 
 
ITEM:      Smoking & Tobacco Use Ordinance Amendment, Mr. Jason Squires, ACM 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
At the September 3 BoCC mtg, the Board asked staff to define enforcement mechanisms 
more clearly for the Smoking & Tobacco Use Ordinance.  There is a memo attached with 
some additional information along with the original ordinance and the amended 
ordinance.  
 
Mr. Squires will discuss the amended Smoking & Tobacco Use Ordinance and ask for the 
Board’s approval of it. 
See attached. 



Agenda Item Memo  Page 1 of 1 

 

 
POST OFFICE BOX 1007 

PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 

OFFICE (252) 793-5823    

   AGENDA ITEM MEMO 

MEETING DATE:  October 7th, 2024  MEMO Date:  September 30, 2024      ITEM:   

SUBJECT:  Amendment to the Updated Smoking Ordinance Enforcement Language 

DEPARTMENT: CMO 

FROM:  John Waterman, LFNC Fellow 

ATTACHMENTS: 
A- Amended Updated Smoking Ordinance (6pgs) 

B- Current Smoking Ordinance (1pg) 

PURPOSE: To review and adopt the amended updated Smoking Ordinance.  

 

BACKGROUND:  

 

At the September board meeting, a request was made to define enforcement mechanisms more clearly for the smoking 

ordinance. Staff have updated language accordingly. Now, enforcement lies in the hands of the individual responsible 

for maintaining security in each non-smoking area, which in most county areas will be the County Manager or their 

designee. The updated language also now clearly states that the penalty is an infraction (see definition below) and the 

requisite fine, which can only be given out following an oral or written warning.  

An infraction is a technical term defined by state law.  It must be issued by a law enforcement officer and enforced as a 

non-criminal offense in accordance with applicable statutes.  Any fines collected are payable toward the local school 

system in the same manner as other fines per state law. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACTS: N/A  

 

RECOMMENDATION(S): 1. VOTE: To approve the amendments to the Updated Smoking Ordinance as presented. 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS: 

ANN C. KEYES, CHAIR 

CAROL V. PHELPS, VICE-CHAIR  

TRACEY A. JOHNSON 

JOHN C. SPRUILL 

JULIUS WALKER, JR. 

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF: 

CURTIS S. POTTER, ICMA-CM  
  COUNTY MANAGER & COUNTY ATTORNEY 

cpotter@washconc.org  
 

JASON SQUIRES 
ASSISTANT COUNTY MANAGER 

acm@washconc.org 

 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 
 

      JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 

 
 





Washington County Smoking & Tobacco Use Ordinance ORD-065 Page 1 of 6 

   
ORD-065 

 

Washington County 
Smoking and Tobacco Use Ordinance 

Adopted October 7th, 2024 

 
PROHIBITION ON smoking and the use of tobacco products, in government buildings, 

vehicles, and grounds (including the County park system). 
 

WHEREAS, according to the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC), 
smoking is the leading cause of preventable death in the United States (U.S.); and 

 
WHEREAS, each year, cigarette smoking causes more than 480,000 deaths, which is 

nearly one in five people, in the United Statesi; and 
 

WHEREAS, the CDC reports that smoking habits and tobacco product use is started and 
established primarily during adolescence; with nearly 90% of adults who smoke cigarettes daily 
beginning smoking by age 18; and 

 
WHEREAS, since 2014, E-cigarettes have been the most common tobacco product 

among youthii; and 

WHEREAS, each day, close to 1,200 kids under 18 try their first cigarette and close to 
100 kids become new, regular smokers; and 

 
WHEREAS, children model adult behavior and benefit from positive models of non- 

smoking behavior and positive reinforcement of healthy lifestyle messagesiii; and 
 

WHEREAS, research shows there is no safe level of exposure to tobacco or secondhand 
smoke, because even brief exposure can trigger harmful changes in the cardiovascular system 
and cause the onset of serious diseases such as lung cancer, heart disease, and strokes in smoking 
and non-smoking adultsiv; and 

 
WHEREAS, on January 2, 2010, North Carolina Session Law 2009-27 entitled “An Act 

To Prohibit Smoking In Certain Public Places And Certain Places Of Employment,” became 
effective, authorizing local governments to adopt and enforce ordinances “that are more 
restrictive than State law and that apply in local government buildings, on local government 
grounds, in local vehicles, or in public places”; and 

 
WHEREAS, Pursuant to NCGS § 130A-498 and NCGS § 153A-121(a), which authorize 

local governments to restrict smoking in public places, and otherwise regulate, prohibit, or abate 
any act, by ordinance, which may be detrimental to the health and safety of its citizens; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Washington County Board of County Commissioners are committed to 

providing a safe and healthy workplace in all county owned and controlled facilities, for 



Washington County Smoking & Tobacco Use Ordinance ORD-065 Page 2 of 6 

   
ORD-065 

 

county employees, citizens, and the visiting public, and wishes to minimize the harmful effects 
thereon of smoking and tobacco use (including e-cigarette use); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Martin-Tyrrell-Washington District Health Department provides support 

to employees and residents who wish to quit the use of tobacco products and encourages them to 
talk with their health care provider about quitting, ask about appropriate 
pharmacotherapy available through their health insurance plan or employee’s insurer, and to use 
the free quitting support services of the North Carolina QuitlineNC at 1-800- QUIT-NOW (1-
800-784-8669); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Washington County Board of County Commissioners finds and declares 

that in order to protect the public health and safety, it is in the best interest of the citizens of 
Washington County to adopt this Ordinance to establish certain rules prohibiting the use of 
smoking and other tobacco products and use in public places and in county owned or controlled 
buildings, grounds and vehicles. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Washington County Board of County 

Commissioners that the following rules & regulations pertaining to smoking and tobacco use are 
hereby established and adopted as follows: 

 
Section 1. Authority. 

 
This ordinance is enacted pursuant to NCGS 130A-498, and 153A-121(a). 

 
Section 2. Definitions 

 
(a) "County building". – A building owned, leased as lessor, or the area leased as lessee 

and occupied by the County. 
(b) “County vehicle". – Any vehicle owned, leased, or otherwise controlled by the 

County and assigned permanently or temporarily to its employees, agencies, 
institutions, or facilities for official County business. 

(c) “E-cigarette”. – Any electronic oral device that employs a mechanical heating element, 
battery, or electronic circuit that can be used to heat a liquid nicotine solution or any 
other substance, and the use or inhalation of which simulates smoking. This term shall 
include any such device, whether manufactured, distributed, marketed, or sold as an e-
cigarette, e-cigar, e-pipe, or under any other product name or description. 

(d) “Employee”. – A person who is employed by Washington County, or who contracts 
with the County or a third person to perform services for the County, or who otherwise 
performs services for the County with or without compensation. 

(e) “Grounds”. – An unenclosed area owned, leased, or occupied by the County. 
(f) “Local health department”. – The district health department, public health 

authority, or county health department, the jurisdiction of which includes the 
County. Initially, this term shall mean the Martin-Tyrrell-Washington District Health 
Department. 



Washington County Smoking & Tobacco Use Ordinance ORD-065 Page 3 of 6 

   
ORD-065 

 

(g) “County parks system”. – Any tract of land or body of water comprising part of the 
County’s parks, playgrounds, recreation areas, greenways, or trails. 

(h) “Smoking". – The use or possession of a lighted cigarette, lighted cigar, lighted pipe, 
or any other lighted tobacco product. 

(i) “Tobacco product”. – Any product containing or derived from tobacco that is intended 
for human consumption, whether chewed, smoked, absorbed, dissolved, inhaled, or 
ingested by any other means, including but not limited to cigarettes; e- cigarettes; cigars; 
little cigars; snuff; and chewing tobacco. A tobacco product excludes any product that 
has been approved by the United States Food and Drug Administration for sale as a 
tobacco cessation product, as a tobacco dependence product, or for other medical 
purposes, and is being marketed and sold solely for such an approved purpose. 

(j) “Universal ‘No Smoking’ Symbol”. – Symbol consisting of a pictorial representation 
of a burning cigarette enclosed in a red circle with a red bar across it. 

(k) “Universal ‘No Smoking and Use of Tobacco Products Prohibited’ Symbol”. – 
Symbol consisting of a pictorial representation of a burning cigarette and a tobacco 
product enclosed in a red circle with a red bar across it. 

 
Section 3. Areas in Which Smoking and the Use of Tobacco Products are Prohibited or 
Permitted. 

 
(a) Except where expressly permitted pursuant to section (c) below or otherwise by 

applicable state law, smoking and the use of tobacco products are strictly prohibited at 
all times: 

 
i. In Washington County buildings (including those in the County park system); 
ii. In Washington County vehicles; 
iii. On Washington County grounds; 
iv. On the grounds of the Washington County parks system; and 

 
(b) The prohibition on smoking and the use of tobacco products in the places listed in section 

(a) above includes those times when they are being used for private events. 
 

(c) Areas in Which Smoking and the Use of Tobacco Products are Permitted. Smoking 
and the use of tobacco products are not regulated by this rule in the following 
places: 

 
i. A private residence 
ii. A private vehicle 
iii. Within ten (10) feet of any specifically designated public smoking area posted as 

such by the County. 



Washington County Smoking & Tobacco Use Ordinance ORD-065 Page 4 of 6 

   
ORD-065 

 

Section 4. Implementation. 
 

(a) The preliminary implementation period of this Ordinance shall be from the date of its 
initial adoption until January 1st, 2025. Afterwards this Ordinance shall be deemed in full 
continuous force and effect. 

 
(b) During the preliminary implementation period, and continuing thereafter, the County 

shall exercise reasonable efforts to inform its employees, citizens, and visiting members 
of the public about the implementation of these rules including without limitation: 

 
i. Posting signs meeting all the requirements in Section 5 of this Ordinance. 
ii. Removing all ashtrays and other smoking receptacles from places where 

smoking and tobacco products are prohibited. 
iii. Informing a person who is smoking or using a tobacco product in violation of this 

Ordinance about its existence, and requesting such person immediately cease from 
continuing to engage in any prohibited activity or conduct. If the person does not 
comply, contact the Washington County Sheriff’s Office. 

 
Section 5. Signage. The signs referred to in Section 4 of this Ordinance should: 

 
(a) State in English and Spanish the applicable prohibition for the area (e.g. smoking and 

the use of tobacco products are prohibited) and include the applicable universal symbol 
(e.g., the “No Smoking and Use of Tobacco Products Prohibited” symbol). 

(b) Be of sufficient size to be clearly legible to a person of normal vision and be 
conspicuously posted. 

(c) Be posted at the entrance to each Washington County building and in other locations 
within the building reasonably calculated to inform employees and the public of the 
prohibition. 

(d) Be posted in each Washington County vehicle in areas visible to passengers, provided 
that their placement does not interfere with the safe operation of the vehicle. If the 
vehicle is used for undercover law enforcement operations, a sign is not required to be 
placed in the vehicle. 

(e) Be posted on Washington County grounds in locations and at intervals reasonably 
calculated to inform employees and the public of the prohibition. 

(f) Be posted on the grounds in the Washington County parks system in locations and at 
intervals reasonably calculated to inform employees and the public of the prohibition. 

 
Section 6. Enforcement and Penalties 

 
(a) Penalty for Violation. Unless otherwise stated by NCGS § 130A-498(c1) or other laws 

governing local smoking ordinances, any individual who violates this Ordinance shall 
first receive an oral or written warning from the individual responsible for maintaining 
security in any designated non-smoking area 



Washington County Smoking & Tobacco Use Ordinance ORD-065 Page 5 of 6 

   
ORD-065 

 

referenced in Sections 3, or their designee. For County-owned or operated facilities, the 
County Manager or their designee may issue such warnings. The warning will direct the 
individual to immediately cease prohibited behavior. 
If the individual continues to engage in prohibited conduct after the warning, they will be 
deemed in violation of this Ordinance, constituting an infraction as defined by NCGS § 
14-3.1. The violator may be subject to a fine of up to fifty dollars ($50.00), imposed in 
accordance with NCGS § 15A Article 66 (Procedure for Hearing and Disposition of 
Infractions) or other applicable law. Conviction of an infraction under this section will 
result only in the payment of the fine unless otherwise specified by law. 

 
(b) Additional sanctions for employees. In addition to any penalty under subsection (a), 

employees of Washington County who violate this ordinance may be subject to 
disciplinary action consistent with Washington County’s personnel policies. 

 
Section 7. Public Education 

 
Washington County shall engage in an ongoing program to explain and clarify the 
purposes and requirements of this ordinance to employees and citizens affected by it and 
to guide operators and managers in their compliance with it. In doing so, Washington 
County may rely upon materials and information provided by the local health department. 

 
Section 8. Severability; Conflict of Laws. 

 
If this ordinance or application thereof to any person or circumstance is held invalid for 
any reason, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions or applications of the 
ordinance that can be given separate effect, and to that end the provisions of this 
ordinance are declared to be severable. All prior ordinances or parts of prior ordinances 
in conflict with this ordinance are hereby repealed. 

 
Section 9. Effective Date. 

 
This ordinance shall become fully effective on the 1st day of January 2025 following the 
implementation period provided for hereinabove. 

 
 
ADOPTED this 7th day of October 2024.  

 
 

 
Ann Keyes, Chair 
Washington County Board of Commissioners 

 ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 
Clerk to the  Washington County Board of Commissioners



Washington County Smoking & Tobacco Use Ordinance ORD-065 Page 6 of 6 

   
ORD-065 

 

 
 

i Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. (2021, October 29). Health effects of cigarette smoking. 
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. 
https://www.cdc.gov/tobacco/data_statistics/fact_sheets/health_effects/effects_cig_smoking/index.ht 
m 

ii Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. (2023, November 2). Youth and tobacco use. Centers for 
Disease Control and Prevention. 
https://www.cdc.gov/tobacco/data_statistics/fact_sheets/youth_data/tobacco_use/index.htm 

iii American Lung Association. (n.d.). Tobacco facts: State of Tobacco Control. State of Tobacco Control | 
American Lung Association. https://www.lung.org/research/sotc/facts 

iv U.S. state and local issues: Smoke-free laws. Campaign for Tobacco-Free Kids. (n.d.). 
https://www.tobaccofreekids.org/what-we-do/us/smoke-free-laws 

http://www.cdc.gov/tobacco/data_statistics/fact_sheets/health_effects/effects_cig_smoking/index.ht
http://www.cdc.gov/tobacco/data_statistics/fact_sheets/youth_data/tobacco_use/index.htm
http://www.lung.org/research/sotc/facts
http://www.tobaccofreekids.org/what-we-do/us/smoke-free-laws
jbennett
Cross-Out



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  7 
 
       DATE:  October 7, 2024 
 
 
ITEM:      Boards & Committees, Ms. Julie J. Bennett, Clerk to the Board 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
The Planning Board sent a recommendation to the Commissioners to replace Ms. Bunny 
Saunders (seat for Roper Municipal District) with Mr. Maurice Hill.   The seat expires in 
December 2024 and they are asking to extend his term to December 31, 2027.  Mr. Hill 
has agreed to serve if appointed.   
 
Appointments are up for the Coastal Resources Advisory Council.  Commissioner Spruill 
has been serving on this Board.  Commissioner Spruill said he will serve if re-appointed.  
This is a two-year term. 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  8 
 
       DATE:  October 7, 2024 
 
ITEM:        Finance Officer’s Report 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Ms. Missy Dixon, Finance Officer, will discuss the enclosed budget 
amendments/transfers to the Board for approval/disapproval and other information. 
 
See attached. 
 
 
 





























































































































































































 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   10 
 
       DATE:     October 7, 2024 
 
ITEM:       Other Items by Chair, Commissioners, CM/CA, Finance Officer or 

Clerk 
 
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 

 Employee Appreciation Events & Schedule, Ms. Julie J. Bennett, Clerk to the 
Board---Employee Fall Fling, Friday, October 11 from 1:00 PM – 5:00 PM at 
Flowers Park in Plymouth.  Employee Christmas Breakfast, Friday, December 
20, from 9:30 AM – 11:30 AM at the Plymouth Church of Christ Family Life 
Center. 
 

 Public Safety Awareness Day, October 22, 2024, Vernon James Center (flyer 
attached) 

 
 America’s 250th Anniversary, Mr. Curtis Potter will discuss this. 

 
 Department Head Reports from September 2024—see attached 

 
 Statistics Reports—see attached 

 
 ROD Ledger Summary Rollup – See attached 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 



October 22, 2024 

11:00 am to 2:00pm 

Vernon James Center 

207 Research Station Road 

Plymouth NC 27962 

Washington County Emergency Management 

Is hosting a regional 

Public Safety Awareness Day 

For Public Officials and responders in leadership roles 

NCEM, National Weather Service, NCACC, and more 

Apparatus Displays 

Lunch (will need headcount) 

Contact Lance Swindell 

252-793-4114 

Emergencymanager@washconc.org 

Agenda and other information will follow 

 



 

Department Head Reports to the Commissioners 
October 7, 2024 

Board of Commissioners’ Meeting 
 
EMS 
Jennifer O’Neal 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Recreation 
Randy Fulford 
 
Recreation is good.  We play at home on Saturday. Teams from all around will be here and the 
games begin at 9:00 am.   
 
 
Elections 
Dora Bell 
 
 No report submitted. 

 
Library 
Brandy Goodwin 
  
Staffing: 
No changes to report. 
 
Programming: 

• Since school has taken back in for the year, we will not be hosting many programs at the 
library due to issues with attendance. 

• Our usual Wednesday programs (in-person storytime, virtual storytime, and WIP) are still 
ongoing. 

• We will be hosting local author Gloria Alexander on Thursday, October 24th from 5-7 
PM so she can conduct a book signing and promote her new poetry book “Enlighten Me.” 

• The library will be participating in Trick-or-Treat on Water Street on Halloween Night. 
 
Other Library and Community Happenings: 

• The Regional Board has voted to make our library fine free; this change has been added 
to our policy and will be put into action soon – accounts with existing fines will be 
cleared and our check-out period will now be extended to three weeks due to fines no 
longer existing. 

• Our “Easy Readers” (Level 1, 2, and 3) will be re-cataloged with a new “Easy Reader” 
classification and moved to a specified area of the Children’s Room for easier patron 
access. 

• Collection Development is still ongoing.  



 

• We ask that patrons follow us on our social media accounts (Facebook, Instagram, and 
YouTube) to be kept up to date on upcoming programs/events as this is the easiest way to 
get information to a number of people at the same time – please share our events!  

 
 
Cooperative Extension 
Rebecca Liverman 
   

 



 

 
 
Tax Office 
Sherri Wilkins 
 
1. We continue to work every day with Zacchaeus Legal Services – sending tax 

information, verifying balances due, completing tax certifications, adding attorney fees 
and/or suit cost.  

2. Assisted the taxpayers with the Tag & Tax program, handling value adjustments, 
refunds, releases, address corrections and general questions regarding motor vehicles.  



 

3. Continue to verify PINs for Deed filings, process Tax Certifications and assign 
addresses in GIS – we had several address requests this month. We have a variation of 
these daily.  

4. Continue to work with the landfill. They call us for verification of ownership of a 
property, for example, there is a new owner for a property and that person is going into 
the landfill but before they are allowed to dump their debris or trash, the landfill calls us 
to make sure they own the property at the address they have given.  

5. The Statistical report was submitted. 
6. Sent mapping updates to Joe with Atlas. Had correspondence with Joe several times for 

assistance with mapping requests.  
7. Received debt set-off payments this month. 
8. Rosa and Jerrian attended the Fundamentals of Property Tax Collection in Chapel Hill 

this month. This is the first of their 2 required courses to tax.  
9. The office was very busy with tax payments, releases, appeal questions, exemption 

questions, questions that always arise after the tax bills are received.  
10. Christal, Hollie, and I sat in on a Public Records workshop this month.  
11. September 30th there is a Plat Review Officer workshop that Hollie and I will sit in on.  
12. Still processing prepayments toward tax bills.  

 
The office staff and I appreciate the COLA that was received this year as well as individual 
increases received by some positions 
 
 
Planning/Inspections/Floodplain Management 
Allen Pittman 

  
Permits issued    27  
Demolition Permit     1  
Floodplain Review for permit    2  
Map Reviews(exempt)    4  
Inspections    40  
 
This number does not include WashCo PK-12 School inspections, which is ongoing 
regularly.    
  
Sept. 6, 13, 20, 27  worked Tyrrell County  
 
Sept. 10th – Community Rating System Audit in house – left a list of documentation to 
provide for final scoring;  work continues  
 
Sept. 13th – Met with Mr.  White in Town of Columbia regarding their floodplain 
permitting procedure  
 
Sept. 19th – Planning Board met – Requested Public Hearing be continued to October 17 
to receive guidance from County legal and Admin regarding rezoning of property on 
Highway 64 across from new school building.   Met with Curtis Potter on September 25 
regarding same.  



 

 
Recommend Maurice Hill to fill seat of Roper Municipal district on Planning Board  
 
Subdivision Review Committee of Planning Board met to review a proposed property 
division  

 
Emergency Management 
Lance Swindell  
 
Aug. 26th  MTW Prioritization Meeting 
Aug. 26th   Fire Chiefs Meeting @ Mid County VFD 
Aug. 29th   NEOGOV Webinar 
Sept. 1st   Distressed boater-Leary’s Beach 
Sept.  3rd Staff Meeting 
Sept.  4th  DHM 
Sept.  5th – 9th EM 1 out of town 
Sept.  11th  Summer NCEM Forum, Pitt County Ag Center 
Sept.  2nd  City of Rocky Mount Tiger Dam Demonstration-Postponed till Oct.1st 
Sept.  14th  Roper Peanut Festival-EM parade entry and light tower deployment 
Sept. 17th  EM meeting with Smithfield Feed Mill to accept donation of Grain Bin Rescue     

Equipment presented to Washington County EM. 
Sept. 17th  10-50 assist PVFD with fluid leak 
Sept. 18th   Finalized all CBCGrant quotes 
Sept. 18th  Hosted Civil Unrest State exercise/Sherrif and Chief Deputy Norman, CM Potter 

present and assisted with same. 
Sept. 23rd Submitted Requisitions for CBCGrant 
Sept. 23rd  Motorola and Triangle Tower/Roper Tower Fire repeater equip./antenna/coax 

update 
Sept. 23rd  Light Tower assist to Williamston FD for Stampede 
Sept. 24th   Search and Rescue Training @ Mid County VFD 
Sept. 24th  Completed Hyper Reach payment for all RAP-LEPC counties 
Sept. 25th  Assist LPVFD/CVFD with 10-50 Ambrose Rd. 
Sept. 27th  A.M. - Lunch Meeting with other county EM’s in Chowan 
Sept. 27th   P.M. Meeting with NCACC rep/safety assessment 
Sept. 27th Late P.M. Meeting with A. Pittman at new school for inspection 
Sept. 30th  Staff Meeting 
 
 
Upcoming Events 
Oct. 1st  City of Rocky Mount Tiger Dam Demo 
Oct. 9th  DHM 
Oct. 5th  Search and Rescue all day Saturday Training 
Oct. 11th Fall Fling 
Oct. 13th – 16th  EM-1 Out of Town 
Oct. 22nd  Public Safety/Public Officials Forum-Invite coming soon 
Oct. 24th  CRG/NCACC Meeting /BCCC 
 
 



 

Soil and Water 
Chris Respass 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Landfill 
Charles Teal 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Sheriff’s Office/Detention/E911 
Chief Deputy Arlo Norman/Clinta Blount/Harley Spruill 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Information Technology 
Darlene Fikes 
 
 Mediacom: Several Mediacom supervisors and tech staff have visited the Courthouse to 

determine the best way to rerun cable. Waiting to hear back from them. Departments 
remaining to receive digital receiver: 911 Center, Magistrate’s Office, Jail and Sheriff’s 
Office. 

 
 Tax Office Software Migration: On hold until billing is completed. 

 
 FY24 911 Grant: Antenna and Repeater installed Monday, September 23. Waiting for all 

components to be delivered for APX Consolettes and Fire Alerting Control Station – 
currently estimated to arrive the week of October 1. 

 
 FY24 PSAP Assessment: PSAP Assessment took place June 20 and the deadline to 

complete corrections was September 20. Two deficiencies remained. Reports from 
AQUA, but Harley is the only one with log in credentials and she is out on maternity 
leave, so there was no way reports could be pulled. The second deficiency – the addition 
of a quality assurance process documented in policy. Sent letter to 911 Board stating 
Harley is on maternity leave and will be unable to complete the two remaining 
deficiencies. A reassessment will take place in 2025.  

 
1. Troubleshoot issue with phone line at Airport. 
2. Contact NCDIT-request adding caller-id to Airport phone 793-9801. 
3. Review how to add postage to postage machine with Missy. 
4. Multiple calls to BrightSpeed concerning Landfill phone. Line has been cut. Ticket 

submitted and repairs made. Multiple calls/emails requesting to receive credit for the 20 
days of no service. Credit approved. 

5. Review options for basement digital door with Ricky. Troubleshoot connections to 
switch. 



 

6. Contact Edmunds to discuss is options exist to run Edmunds on a Mac platform for Co-
op Extension-No. 

7. Review phone lines ported to VC3. Research Stop Program to see if phone lines are still 
being used. Discuss with Curtis. Contact NCDIT – disconnect and remove from billing.  

8. Complete 911 Expenditure Revenue Report, review with Missy and submit to 911 Board. 
9. Setup O365 mfa on James Hinson to send code to new phone. 
10. Submit 911 Monthly Grant Report. 
11. Review Specialty addendum and verify correct. 
12. Attend Teams meeting on SIP Admin Project. 
13. Multiple phone call/emails to Mediacom concerning rerunning cable and new digital  

receivers to be installed in the courthouse for courtesy accounts. 
14. Multiple phone calls to BrightSpeed and Lumen concerning price increase on internet  

service at Courthouse. 
15. Conversations with 911 Regional Manager concerning Assessment and 911 Grant. 
16. Submit written request to 911 Board for waiver of centralized battery. 
17. Phone calls with Motorola to schedule installation of antenna and repeater. Installed 

September 23. 
18. Get quotes and order poll place laptops for Board of Elections.  
19. Discus with Renee quote needed. 
20. Move IT back in office after flooding repairs made. 
21. -Troubleshoot issue with email for James Hinson. 
22. -Conversations/emails with Sheriff, Arlo and Harley concerning PSAP Assessment. 

Discuss  
with 911 Regional Manager. Discuss with Curtis. Submit letter to 911 Board to have a  
reassessment in 2025. 

23. Review BrightSpeed invoice for internet at Elections. There were multiple errors in 
billing.  

24. Contact rep to discuss and request credit. Credit approved. 
25. Discuss billing for equipment on grant with Motorola. 
26. Discuss Essential Plus Package with Motorola. Email agreement to Debbie to load in  

System for Curtis to sign. 
27. Get quotes for Missy and Laurie. 
28. Organize all Dell orders received-quotes/POs/invoices/packing slips. Submit invoices to  

Finance. 
29. Work with Health Department and Dell. Health Department orders are being billed to  

Washington County. 
30. Work on reconciling IT budget. Work on quotes and invoices. Check status of invoices 

that are 911 eligible. 
31. Attend County Manager group meetings. 
32. Check postage machine during the month to determine when postage is needed.     
33. Stamp, sign & copy invoices & take to Finance. 
34. Verify CopyPro invoice for Finance. 
35. Complete Weekly Activity Report for County Manager 

 
 
 
 
 



 

Senior Center 
Renee’ Collier 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Surplus 
Debbie Knieper 
 

 
 
Airport 
Mary Moscato 
 
Project Update:  
• Airfield Lighting Improvement Project 

o Currently pending calibration and an FAA flight check on the PAPI (Precision Approach 
Path Indicators) lights. The second change order was approved to replace the Beacon’s 
photocell, install fencing around the Beacon, repair two regulators, and replace three (3) 
concrete duct covers that were sheared off when mowing (this task was completed in 
September) 

• RPZ Obstruction  
o Received the Contract Documents and Specifications - 100% Design Submittal (not released 

for construction) and the Engineers Opinion of Probable Cost breakdown. 
o Received the NC DEMLR – FROF (Permit) Application Approval  

• AWOS 
o This project is being transitioned from engineering firm AVCON to Talbert & Bright. 

Otherwise, there is no current activity.  
 

 
 



 

Other Activities: 
• AVCON submitted the draft Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan. It was forwarded to NC DEQ 

for review.  
• Toured the Airport property with Tyco Land Development so they can provide a quote to mow and 

clear out the ditches.  
• Completed and submitted the NC Airport Electrification Survey to the Department of Aviation. 

 
Revenue Update: 
• August Fuel Sales:  $4,880 
• Total fuel sales for FY25:  $14,451 
• Hangar Leases:  $12,450   

 
NOTE: I was on vacation from September 16th-29th 
 

  
Facility Services 
Ricky Young 
 
Unfinished Business: 

• DSS parking lot lines. 
• Converting lights at the Water Department in Roper. 
• Boards on Commissioners handicap ramp. 
• Countertop at the Airport. 

 
Maintenance: 

• Completed 61 work orders. 
• Completed painting at the Library. 
• Built benches for the Recreation Department football field. 
• Installed water heaters in the Jail and DSS. 
• Repaired the fire alarm system at the Board of Elections. 
• Installed new cameras at the Board of Elections. 

 
Upcoming Projects: 

• Trimming trees at the Courthouse, Probation and Board of Elections. 
• Replace all outside lights at the Library. 

 
 
Register of Deeds 
Timothy Esolen 
 
Pretty much business as usual. Here’s a brief summary of work:   
 
Marriage Licenses issued: = 3  
Transfers of property = 21  
Foreclosures = 2  
Deaths recorded (passed away in August 2024) = 8 (5 Heart Related) (3 Cancer Related)  
Births recorded = 0 



 

DSS 
Clifton Hardison 
 
    

 



 

 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 
 



 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 

 



 

 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD Totals

Amount* -$                                        

Current Year Tax 1,034,603.36$    472,813.97$       1,507,417.33$                     

Current Yr Discount -$                      (2,288.44)$          (2,288.44)$                            

Current Year Penalty -$                      84.94$                 84.94$                                    

Current Year Interest -$                      -$                      -$                                        

Watershed Tax Current Yr 900.00$               1,339.03$            2,239.03$                              

Watershed Discount -$                      (25.44)$                -$                                        

Watershed Penalty -$                      1.05$                    1.05$                                      

Watershed Interest -$                      -$                      -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                       -$                                        

Prior Year Tax 113,986.52$       43,681.96$         157,668.48$                         

Prior Year Penalty 533.81$               46.79$                 580.60$                                 

Prior Year Interest 107,944.06$       164,514.32$       272,458.38$                         

Prior Year Watershed 427.68$               172.72$               600.40$                                 

Prior Year WS Penalty 5.90$                    0.28$                    6.18$                                      

Prior Year WS Interest 483.98$               346.23$               830.21$                                 

Bad Checks -$                      -$                      -$                                        

Prepayments -$                      83.08$                 83.08$                                    

TOTAL 1,258,885.31$   680,770.49$      -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                      -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                -$                  1,939,681.24$                     

Initiated 0 0 0

Amount -$                      -$                      -$                                        

Satisfied/Cancelled 0 0 0

Amount -$                      -$                      -$                                        

*

 $         94,977.77 91,165.98$         91,165.98$                           

 -$                                        

Billed Current Yr -$                      -$                                        

Collected All Years 14,532.69$         28,278.01$         42,810.70$                           

Bad Checks -$                      -$                      -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                       -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                -$                  -$                                        

TOTAL 14,532.69$         28,278.01$         -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                       -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                -$                  42,810.70$                           

Billed Current Yr -$                      -$                      -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                       -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                -$                  -$                                        

Collected Current Yr 291.70$               -$                  291.70$                                 

TOTAL 291.70$               -$                      -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                       -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                -$                  291.70$                                 

Collected Current Yr 6,167.86$            12,381.04$         0 18,548.90$                           

Creswell Levy 349.86$               1,674.35$            2,024.21$                             

1,375,205.19$   814,269.87$      -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                      -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                -$                  2,189,475.06$                     

Albemarle Beach Solar, LLC They are selling the property. The sale is supposed to be completed in September and delinquent taxes paid. I have emailed them for an update.

VL Group A, LLC No payments rec'd on the 2023 taxes. Delinquent balance due $3,147.38

Plymouth Solar, LLC No payments rec'd on the 2023 taxes. Delinquent balance due $38,247.30. 

I am in contact with the same person who is handling the Albemarle Beach Solar, LLC payment plan for a status on the payments for VL Group, LLC and Plymouth Solar, LLC.  

She stated she is giving the owner of the companies the delinquent taxes due for VL Group and Plymouth Solar but he hasn't approved payment yet. 

Tax and Tag Collections

Solid Waste Fees

Bank Attachments are usually in/out the same month - the bank either pays or sends a notice that no funds are available.

TAX

FY24-25

Collections

Advalorem Garnishments

Eddie Smith Drainage

Drainage Fees - Other

Town Collections

TOTAL TAX DEPOSIT

Tax Fees

Current Yr Discount Current Year Penalty Current Year Interest Watershed Tax Current Yr Watershed Discount Watershed Penalty Watershed Interest Prepayments TOTAL



July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June
YTD 

Totals

Water Billed FY 23-24  (in 

million gallons)
8.08 8.93 7 6.896 7.547 6.94 7.77 6.19 6.16 8.23 2.755 8.28 86

Water Billed  FY 24-25 (in 

million gallons)
9.51 6.91

Base Charges 71,439$      71,283$      142,722$        

Consumption Charges 81,120$      46,350$      127,470$        

Reconnecton Charges 1,890$        2,240$        4,130$            

 Number of Abatements 18 9 27                    

  Dollar Amount of 

Abatements 
2,408.50$  3,608$        6,016.00$      

Water Pumped                       
(in million gallons)

16.4 15.9 32.300

Number of Customers 2682 2676 5,358

New taps 2 2 2

Water Billed to Roper 4,844.65$     4,844.65$     9,689.30$                

0

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

FY Water Consumption Comparison

Water Billed FY 23-24  (in million gallons) Water Billed  FY 24-25 (in million gallons)



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June
YTD 

Totals

WC Dispatched 161 131

WC Transported 124 95 219

WC Refusals 37 36 73

Transport Washington

Hospital to Hospitals 0 1 1

SNF to Doctors 112 94 206

Hospital Discharges 13 9 22

EMS Back Up 4 5 9

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June
YTD 

Totals

TC Dispatched 51 66 117

TC Transported 36 41 77

TC Refusals 15 25 40

Mutual Aid Hyde

HC Dispatched 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

HC Transported 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

HC Refusals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
                                                                

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS)

FY24-25

Washington County

Tyrrell County

EMS Dispatches for FY24-25
(Washington, Tyrrell & Hyde Counties)



41%

14%

22%

15%

8% 0%0%0%

EMS Dispatches for FY24-25
(Washington, Tyrrell & Hyde Counties)

WC Dispatched

WC Transported

WC Refusals

TC Dispatched

TC Transported

TC Refusals

HC Dispatched

HC Transported

HC Refusals



July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD 
Limbs, Brush & Leaves 62.41 42.11 90.43 194.95

Inert Debris 76.5 32.1 27.58 136.18

Scrap Metal 0.57 1.34 0.49 2.40

C&D 32.24 44.74 47.06 124.04

Tires 11.76 4.92 5.37 22.05

LANDFILL  (in tons)

FY 24-25

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

Landfill Collections in Tons 

Limbs, Brush & Leaves Inert Debris Scrap Metal C&D Tires



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD Totals

Building $4,702.70 3,080.00$      1,960.40$   $9,743.10

Zoning 100.00$    200.00$       25.00$         $325.00

Reinspect 325.00$    100.00$       475.00$       $900.00

SWUF $175.00 145.84$       87.50$         -$             -$             -$             -$             $408.34
HO Recovery 

Fee $10.00 -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             -$            $10.00

Total $5,312.70 $3,525.84 $2,547.90 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $11,386.44

PLANNING AND ZONING

FY24-25

Inspections and Fees

$0.00

$500.00

$1,000.00

$1,500.00

$2,000.00

$2,500.00

$3,000.00

$3,500.00

$4,000.00

$4,500.00

$5,000.00

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

Planning and Zoning Fees Collected (FY24 -25) 

Building Zoning Reinspect SWUF HO Recovery Fee

85%

3%

8%
4%0%

Fees Collected 
Percentages

Building Zoning

Reinspect SWUF

HO Recovery Fee



July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. March April May June YTD Total
YTD Total

Unduplicated Attendees 79 79
Total Guest Check-Ins 29 29
New Member Forms Submitted 8 8
Center-Sponsored Events 450 450
Special Events 149 149
Caregiver's Support Groups 0 0
Exercise Room 64 64
Fitness Workout (ON HOLD) 0 0
Yoga 8 8
Chair Exercise 51 51
Line Dance (ON HOLD) 8 8
Crafts With Sandra Lee 13 13
Drop-in Activities 16 16
Pickle Ball (ON HOLD) 0 0
Computers / Wi-fi 4 4
Roper Classes 14 14
Creswell Classes 10 10

YTD Total
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Congregate Meals Served 0
Home-Delivered Meals Served 0

YTD Total
748.00$  -$           -$            -$           -$           -$         -$           -$            -$            -$            -$         -$     748.00$       

Congregate Donations to AC 69.00$     69.00$          
MOW Donations to AC 550.00$  550.00$       
Activity Fees to County GF 80.00$     80.00$          
Senior Collected Donations 49.00$     49.00$          

SENIOR CENTER
FY24-25



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June
Total (by 

Gender)

Total 

Incacerations

50 52 67 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 169 169
Male 34 34 48 116

Female 8 8 8 24

Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

8 10 10 28 28

Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

HYDE

DETENTION 
FY24-25

Incarcerations by County

WASHINGTON

CHOWAN

US PRISON TRANSPORT 

140

0

1

0

0

0

0

0

0

MARTIN

BEAUFORT

PITT

Northampton

SURRY

SMCP

99%

0%1%0%0%0%0%0%0%

Incarcerations by County (Total FY24-25)

WASHINGTON

CHOWAN

HYDE

MARTIN

BEAUFORT

PITT

Northampton

SURRY

US PRISON TRANSPORT



JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE
YTD 

TOTALS

Total  Number of Dispatched Calls 1105 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1105

Law Enforcement 853 853
Animal Control 73 73

EMS 179 179

Reported Incidents 31 31

Total Arrests 0 0 0 0 0 0

Misdemeanor Arrests 7 7

Felony Arrests 10 10

Total Papers Served 0 0 51 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 51

Criminal Papers Served 17 17

Civil Papers Served 34 34

Total Papers Outstanding 0 0 36 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  36

Criminal Papers Outstanding 7 7
Civil Papers Outstanding 29 29

Gun Permits Issued  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 0

Conceals Pending  N/A 10 10

Concealed Permits Issued  N/A 0

SHERRIFF

FY24-25

7%

16%

Dispatched Calls (FY24-25)

Law Enforcement

Animal Control

EMS



77%

EMS

25

30

35 31

34

29

Total Arrests & Papers Processed/Served (FY24 -25)



JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE
YTD 

TOTALS

Total  Number of Dispatched Calls 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Plymouth Police Department 0

Public Works 0
EMS Calls in the Town of Plymouth 0

Plymouth Fire Department

SHERRIFF

FY24-25









 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   10 
   
       DATE:     October 7, 2024 
 
ITEM:        Closed Session 
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
 
Mr. Potter would like to have the following Closed Sessions pursuant to NCGS§143-
318.11(a)(3) (attorney-client privilege), NCGS§143-318.11(a)(5) (property acquisition) and 
NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6) (personnel). 
 



DRAFT 

 

                        
September 3, 2024 

 
 The Washington County Board of Commissioners met in a regular meeting on 
Tuesday, September 3, 2024, at 6:00 PM in the Commissioners’ Room, 116 Adams Street, 
Plymouth, NC.  Commissioners Tracey A. Johnson, Ann C. Keyes, Carol V. Phelps, John 
C. Spruill and Julius Walker, Jr. were in attendance. Also, present were County 
Manager/County Attorney Curtis S. Potter (by ZOOM), Assistant County Manager, Jason 
Squires, Clerk to the Board Julie J. Bennett and County Finance Officer Missy Dixon. 
 
 Chair Keyes called the meeting to order. Commissioner Walker gave the 
invocation. Commissioner Spruill led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
 ADDITIONS/DELETIONS:  None 
 
 Commissioner Spruill made a motion to approve tonight’s Agenda.  
Commissioner Walker seconded; motion carried unanimously. 
 
 CONSENT AGENDA: 

Items listed under Consent are generally of a routine nature.  The Board may take action to 
approve/disapprove all items in a single vote.  Any item may be withheld from a general action, to 
be discussed and voted upon separately at the discretion of the Board. 

 
a) Approval of Minutes of August 5, 2024  
b) Tax Refunds, Releases & Insolvents 
c) SAA Delegates 
d) 2023 Statewide Emergency Management Mutual Aid Agreement 

 
Commissioner Johnson made a motion to remove Item b) Tax Refunds, 

Releases & Insolvents and approve the Consent Agenda.  Commissioner Phelps 
seconded; motion carried unanimously. 

 
Commissioner Johnson made a motion to approve Item b) Tax Refunds, 

Releases & Insolvents.   Commissioner Phelps seconded; motion carried with 4 ayes 
and 1 recusal, Commissioner Walker (since his wife is listed on the abovementioned 
report.) 
 

PUBLIC FORUM:  Ms. Landra Jackson, 110 June Street, Roper, wanted to inform 
the Commissioners about WMRC. She has not been paid after completing her 2-week 
notice. She was told that only active workers were being paid first and then she would be 
paid.  She reached out to other employees and they were not paid either. Also, her PTO has 
not been paid and she was told it would not be paid in a lump sum but stretched out over 
time.  She wanted her voice to be heard on this subject. 

 
 EMPLOYEE OF THE QUARTER: Chair Keyes read the following information 
about the September 2024 Employee of the Quarter. 
 



DRAFT 

 

The September Employee of the Quarter has been with the County since October 
of 2022.  She has made quite an impression amongst her peers and supervisor as 
we received TWO nominations for this employee.  The following is what was said 
about this employee: 
 

 
 

AND:

 
 
Please join me in congratulating Ms. Hollie Respass as Employee of the Quarter 
for September!  She will be presented with this at the Department Head Mtg. 
tomorrow. 
 
 
 TRILLIUM UPDATE:  Mr. Dave Peterson, Regional Vice President of Trillium 
attended tonight’s meeting to give the following update.  He also said he appreciated 
Commissioner Johnson who has been on their Board for a while.  He also noted that Ms. 
Miranda Keel, Health Education Supervisor/ Preparedness Coordinator at MTW was in  
attendance and is also on their Board.  This is Mr. Peterson’s 10th year in front of the 
Board.   



DRAFT 

 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 
 
 Commissioner Johnson thanked Mr. Peterson for coming to speak to the Board and 
she noted that he has also spoken to the NCACC.  All the Commissioners agreed that Mr. 
Petterson brings useful information when he comes to speak before the Board. 
 
 WASHINGTON COUNTY ANNUAL OPIOID COMMUNITY MEETING:  Ms. 
Vickey Manning, MTW Interim Director, Ms. Miranda Keel, MTW and Mr. Kelly 
Chesson, NCACC, led tonight’s discussion.  Ms. Manning and Ms. Keel both spoke 
about the following presentation.  Mr. Chesson explained that because we received 
Opioid funds in the settlement Washington County is required to have an Opioid update 
meeting for the community each year. 
 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 
 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 

 
 
   
 Chair Keyes said it is evident that there is a lot happening with our opioid funds. 
Commissioner Spruill said someone from MTW came to the Roper Fire Department and 
taught them how to administer NARCAN.  Commissioner Spruill said he heard that some 
people are hoarding the NARCAN to try and get high on it.  MTW said they have heard 
about this also.  Commissioner Spruill asked is there any way to intervene to get them not 
to do this. MTW said they try to reach out to let the person(s) know they are important 
and can be treated.  
 
 Chair Keyes said she would like to participate in a Summit. The Commissioners 
thanked MTW for coming. 

 



DRAFT 

 

 SMOKING & TOBACCO  USE ORDIANCE AMENDMENT:  Mr. Jason 
Squires, ACM spoke about the amendment to the 1993 Smoking & Tobacco Use 
Ordinance. He also gave credit to Ms. Emma Corbett, our SECU Summer Intern, for her 
work on this amendment.   
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 
 Commissioner Johnson said there is no mention of a designated smoking area.  Mr. 
Potter said there are plans to have a smoking section by the Memorial at the side of the 
Courthouse on Adams Street.  Commissioner Johnson also noted a $50 fine is stated and 



DRAFT 

 

asked who is collecting this fine and where do people go to pay.  She suggested the 
Ordinance needs to give direction on what to do, like moving to a designated area.  If 
people do not move and the Sheriff is called, do they assess the $50 penalty?  There needs 
to be documentation of where people can smoke.  Commissioner Johnson said the 
Ordinance needs some clarification.  Mr. Potter said the language comes straight out of the 
statute.  The fine would be a civil offense.  Mr. Potter said some additional language can 
be added. 
 
 Commissioner Spruill asked if someone has a pack of cigarettes in the Courthouse, 
as long as they are not smoking, is this a violation?  Mr. Potter said as long as they are 
obeying the ordinance, they will be ok.  
 
 Commissioner Walker said the Ordinance should address designated smoking 
areas. Mr. Potter said the Ordinance gives the County flexibility in designating smoking 
areas.  
 
 The Board asked to have designated smoking areas and more info on how the fine 
is collected added/explained in the Ordinance. 
 
 Mr. Potter said he would bring the Ordinance back to the October meeting. 
 

 DEPARTMENTAL UPDATE:  Mr. Lee Sasser, Utilities Director, spoke about 
what is going on in the Water Department. He mainly addressed  the flushing of lines (see 
info below). He explained it is done for public health. It prevents stagnation of the water in 
the line and helps to pull out any sediment that may have settled in the pipes.  There are 
126 dead-end lines.  The Water Dept. conducts quarterly flushing and some dead-endlines 
are flushed monthly. The County pumps 188M gallons of water a year and ½ of that is 
from flushing.  Commissioner Johnson asked if the County had less dead-end lines, would 
there be have less flushing?  Mr. Sasser said yes.  It would be great if the County had a 
grid system.  Many roads do not loop around to be tied together. Mr. Sasser said his staff 
completed 20 taps last year, which means the County has gained 20 customers.  Mr. Sasser 
told the Board that the County just got a new SCADA system which should help with 
getting more accurate numbers.  Once a year they do a burnout. A few other items were 
discussed. 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 PUBLIC HEARING:  PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION:  SIGNAGE 
REGULATIONS AMENDMENT:  
 
 Commissioner Johnson made a motion to open the Public Hearing. 
Commissioner Walker seconded; motion passed unanimously. 
 
 Mr. Potter said Mr. Pittman was unable to be here due to a conflict. Mr. Potter said 
the Planning Dept. worked with Ms. Corbett (our ECU summer intern) on this Ordinance 
amendment.  There was a desire to clean up language in Article 7 and add info regarding 
electronic signs. 
 
 Commissioner Spruill said in reading through this Amendment and with what was 
on the website he is having trouble figuring out what the changes are before he votes on it.  
Commissioner Walker said he agreed with Commissioner Spruill.  Mr. Potter said staff 
can prepare a “track changes” document for the October meeting.  Mr. Potter said he has 
reiterated  to staff that we need to have “track changes” documents when making 
amendments or just re-writing documents.  Commissioner Johnson said she would like to 
talk with Mr. Pittman at the next meeting. 
 
 Commissioner Spruill made a  motion to continue the Public Hearing to the 
October 7, 2024, Commissioners’ meeting.  Commissioner Walker seconded; motion 
passed unanimously. 
 
 PUBLIC HEARING: FY2026 COMMUNITY TRANSPORTATION GRANT 
(CTP):   Ms. Kim Blevins, Riverlight Transit Supervisor, spoke to the Board saying that in 
order to submit the FY2026 Community Transportation Grant, she needed to have a public 
hearing and the Board’s approval. 



DRAFT 

 

 
 Commissioner Johnson made a motion to open the Public Hearing.  
Commissioner Spruill seconded; motion carried unanimously. 
 
 Ms. Blevins went over the FY2026 Local Share Certification for Funding. The 
local share would be $38,565 and she has it in her budget. She also mentioned that in the 
grant she is asking for two (2) more vehicles.  She would like to have a raised roof van and 
an additional van with a lift.  Ms. Blevins also noted that the amount requested this year 
for the grant and the local share is a little lower than last year.  
 
 No one from the public spoke at the public hearing. 
 
 Commissioner Spruill made a motion to close the Public Hearing.  
Commissioner Walker seconded; motion carried unanimously. 
 
 Commissioner Johnson made a motion to approve Ms. Blevins applying for 
the FY2026 CTP grant for Riverlight Transit.  Commissioner Spruill seconded; 
motion carried unanimously. 
  
 Commissioner Johnson told Ms. Blevins that it has been noted that some larger 
counties have some electric vehicles.  Commissioner Johnson asked Ms. Blevins if 
Washington County would be looking into purchasing electric vehicles.   Ms. Blevins 
stated not yet, but she feels it is coming. She has been attending webinars about 
purchasing electric vehicles to better understand what would be required.  
 

FINANCE OFFICER’S REPORT:   Ms. Dixon went over the budget transfers and budget 
amendments that were in the Commissioners’ package.  Please see below. 

 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 

Commissioner Spruill asked about BA# 2025-016 – Ms. Dixon said the Tax Office will 
be getting back to the Keystone conversion.  Work had to stop on it due to getting the tax bills 
out. 
 

Commissioner Spruill asked about Page 218, 10-4140-550 (page 2 of 18) regarding a 
transfer of funds and reducing of budgets. MS. Dixon gave an explanation of how this works to 
Commissioner Spruill. 
 

Commissioner Spruill asked about BT #2025-017--taking on Hype Reach.  Ms. Dixon 
explained that the County takes it on in our budget and five (5) other counties/businesses pay us 
for their portion. 
 

Commissioner Spruill questioned one of the DSS funds.  Ms. Dixon explained that the 
money in that particular fund was collected a long time ago and it has a tight scope on how it can 
be spent; however, Ms. Swett does think she has found a way to spend some of it. 

 
Commissioner Spruill_made a motion to approve the budget transfers/ 

amendments as presented.  Commissioner Phelps seconded; motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
OTHER ITEMS BY COMMISSIONERS OR STAFF: 
 
 Broadband CAB Program, Mr. John Waterman, LFNC, told the 

Commissioners that the CAB Program is an extension of Stop-Gap 
Broadband.  The County may possibly have a  5% match. 
 

Commissioner Johnson made a motion to authorize staff to apply for the CAB 
Program.  Commissioner Walker seconded; motion carried unanimously. 

 
 Commissioner Spruill said he had talked to Mr. Squires regarding 

complaints he has received from citizens dealing with the laying of line on 
their properties.  Mr. Squires said he is waiting to hear back from 
Brightspeed on this. 
 

 Mr. Potter said the County received a Request for Payment from the 
Creswell Fire Department for their new firetruck. Discussion ensued.   

 
 Mr. Potter said he is updating the YORE spreadsheet. 

 
 Mr. Potter said the County received a draft for pursuing a new grant fund for 

the outdoor athletic facilities at the Pre-K school from the architect. The 
facilities will cost about $11.5M dollars.  The County does not have excess 
funds for this.   

 
 Commissioner Spruill made a motion to authorize Mr. Potter to sign the 
draft to pursue the abovementioned grant fund.  Commissioner Johnson seconded; 
motion passed unanimously. 
 



DRAFT 

 

 Mr. Potter stated that we may have a Special Called Meeting this month 
regarding the EMTOC building site. 
 

 Commissioner Spruill asked if someone from the County can get with 
Mayor of Creswell to address the concerns of Mr. Wayne Rodgers (from the 
last meeting BoCC meeting) to have more recreational items such as a 
playground or a park in the Creswell area.  Mr. Potter said staff can reach 
out to the Mayor of Creswell. 

 
 Commissioner Spruill stated he attended a Resources Advisory Committee 

Meeting. 
 
 Commissioner Spruill and Mr. Potter attended Pre-K – 12 school meetings.  

They walked through the new school and it looked incredible. 
Commissioner Spruill hopes that a public opening should be facilitated for 
the public to be able to walk through the new school upon completion and 
let them see what their money is paying for. 

 
 Commissioner Walker commended Mr. Potter on the newsletter that went 

out with the water bill.  (Note: this actually went out in staff’s paychecks, 
not the water bill.)  Mr. Waterman will email one to Commissioner 
Johnson.) 

 
 Commissioner Keyes said things are looking grand in Washington County! 

She met with Washington County Fire Commission meeting and agreed 
with Creswell FD for asking for money from the 5th cent that was 
implemented in the budget this year. 

 
 Commissioner Johnson made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Commissioner                       
Spruill seconded; motion carried unanimously. 

 
 
______________________________  ____________________________ 
   Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC        Ann C. Keyes 
            Clerk to the Board               Chair 
 
 



 

DRAFT 

 

                        
September 9, 2024 

 
 The Washington County Board of Commissioners met in a Special Called meeting on Monday, 
September 9, 2024, at 6:30 PM in the Commissioners’ Room, 116 Adams Street, Plymouth, NC.  
Commissioners Tracey A. Johnson, Ann C. Keyes, John C. Spruill and Julius Walker, Jr. were in 
attendance. Also, present were County Manager/County Attorney Curtis S. Potter, Assistant County 
Manager, Jason Squires, Clerk to the Board Julie J. Bennett and County Finance Officer Missy Dixon. 
Commissioner Phelps was unable to attend. 
 
 Chair Keyes called the meeting to order.  
 
 EMTOC SITE SELECTION:  Mr. Jason Squires, ACM, spoke to the Commissioners regarding 
the EMTOC Site Selection. The County received the soil reports from Terracon and they indicated that 
the Lassiter site was the most favorable site over the Weyerhaeuser site.  The Weyerhaeuser site was 
2.5% more expensive for their site prep. Mr. Squires asked the Board to approve the following 
Resolution for acquiring the Lassiter Property. 
 
 
 

COUNTY OF WASHINGTON 

  
POST OFFICE BOX 1007 

PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 
OFFICE (252) 793-5823    

 
 

RESOLUTION 2024-031 
 

LASSITER PROPERTY ACQUISITION 
 

WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute §153A-158 authorizes counties to acquire property for 
County purposes; and 

 
WHEREAS, Washington County has been studying certain alternative property locations to determine 

which might be the most feasible location to construct a new emergency management, training, and operations 
center (EMTOC); and 

 
WHEREAS, Randy C. Lassiter & Lynn U. Lassiter own a certain parcel of real property which is more 

particularly described in a deed thereto recorded in Book 525, Page 541, of the Washington County Register of 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS: 
ANN C. KEYES, CHAIR 

CAROL V. PHELPS, VICE-CHAIR  

TRACEY A. JOHNSON 

JOHN C. SPRUILL 

JULIUS WALKER, JR. 

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER, ICMA-CM  

  COUNTY MANAGER & COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org  

 
JASON SQUIRES 

ASSISTANT COUNTY MANAGER 
acm@washconc.org 

 
 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 
 

      JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 
 
 



 

DRAFT 

 

Deeds Office; and also identified herein for informational purposes as being that property listed with the 
county tax records as Parcel: 6777.06-47-8856; and 

 
WHEREAS, Washinton County is interested in purchasing said parcel of property as it is generally 

depicted on the attached Survey for Washington County by Hood Richardson, P.A. dated 8/15/24 for use in 
connection with the purpose described hereinabove; and 

 
WHEREAS, this Board previously authorized staff to enter into an Agreement for Purchase and Sale of 

Land with the owners of said parcel to permit the County a period of time to conduct certain due diligence 
review of said property prior to making a final decision to purchase it or not for the requested consideration of 
ONE HUNDRED TWENTY-FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($125,000); and 

 
WHEREAS, after entering into said agreement, staff were subsequently required to negotiate two separate 

extensions of the original due diligence period for certain additional consideration, all of which is to be 
credited toward the purchase price for the County at closing, with the exception of an additional non-
refundable ONE THOUSAND FOUR HUNDRED ELEVEN DOLLARS & TWENTY CENTS ($1,411.20); 
and  

 
WHEREAS, based on its due diligence review of alternative site locations, staff recommends moving 

forward with the purchase of the property described hereinabove; and 
 
WHEREAS, this Board is of the opinion that it is in the best interest of the citizens and residents of the 

County to fully authorize the acquisition of the property described hereinabove for the aforesaid purpose of 
using it to construct a new emergency management, training, and operations center in Washington County. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners for the County of 

Washington as follows: 
 
1. That the County Manager are hereby authorized to take any and all actions necessary to obtain the 

property upon the terms and conditions set forth herein and in the aforesaid Agreement for Purchase 
and Sale of Land, as extended. 
 

2. That the closing transaction is subject to the approval of the County Attorney, and the transaction is 
further subject to pre-audit in the manner required by the Local Government Budget and Fiscal Control 
Act by the Finance Director. 
 

3. That this resolution shall be effective upon its adoption. 

 
ADOPTED this the 9th day of September 2024 in Washington County, North Carolina.  

 
              
                                                  __________________________________________ 

Ann C. Keyes, Chair 
           Washington County Board of Commissioners 
 
 
ATTEST: ________________________________ 

Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 
Clerk to the Board 



 

DRAFT 

 

 
 
 Commissioner Spruill said he read both of the technical reports on both sites.  Having to add 
topsoil was the big difference in the cost on the tracts.  Also, the water table is 5 ft below the ground on 
the Weyerhaeuser site and it is 0-15 ft below on the Lassiter site.  That makes it better for doing any 
construction. 
 
 Chair Keyes mentioned the flood plain and wants to make sure that the County does not build on 
the part of the site that is in the flood plain.  
 
 Commissioner Phelps made a motion to approve RESO 2024-031 Lassiter Property 
Acquisition.  Commissioner Spruill seconded; motion carried unanimously. 
 
 CRESWELL FIRE DEPARTMENT FUNDING REQUEST:  Mr. Potter, CM/CA spoke to the 
Board regarding the request from the Creswell Fire Department to make a payment to them to assist 
them in purchasing a new fire truck.  Mr. Potter said this was mentioned at the September 3, 2024, 
Commissioners’ Meeting under Other Items but in order to cut a check, he wanted to bring it back to the 
Board tonight.  $18,350.70 will go towards a payment for their firetruck. This is new with the new extra 
one cent for the Fire Commission. 
 

Commissioner Spruill made a motion to approve the Creswell Fire Department Funding 
Request and authorized payment be made.   Commissioner Walker seconded; motion carried 
unanimously. 
 

RESO 2024-029 WASHINGTON COUNTY RESOLUTION APPLICATION FOR NCDOC 
RURAL DOWNTOWN ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT GRANT FUND MAIN STREET & RURAL 
PLANNING CENTER WASHINGTON COUNTY COURTHOUSE ELEVATOR MODERNIZATION 
PROJECT:   Mr. Potter spoke to the Board regarding the following Resolution.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

DRAFT 

 

 
 

 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS: 
ANN C. KEYES, CHAIR 

 
CAROL V. PHELPS, VICE-CHAIR 

TRACEY A. JOHNSON 

JOHN C. SPRUILL 

JULIUS WALKER, JR. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
POST OFFICE BOX 1007 

PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 
OFFICE (252) 793-5823 

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER, ICMA-CM 

COUNTY MANAGER & COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

JASON SQUIRES 
ASSISTANT COUNTY MANAGER 

acm@washconc.org 
 
 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 

JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 

RESOLUTION 2024-029 
 

WASHINGTON COUNTY RESOLUTION 
APPLICATION FOR NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 

RURAL DOWNTOWN ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT GRANT FUND 
MAIN STREET & RURAL PLANNING CENTER 

WASHINGTON COUNTY COURTHOUSE ELEVATOR MODERNIZATION PROJECT 
 

 
WHEREAS, Washington County’s Board of Commissioners had indicated its desire to assist in 

development efforts with Washington County; and, 

WHEREAS, the full Board of Commissioners fully supports the proposed project by 
Washington County Courthouse Elevator Modernization which will result in the upgrade and 
modernization of the public elevator at the Washington County Courthouse at 120 Adams Street, 
Plymouth, NC, 27962; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners wished to pursue a formal application for the Rural 

Downtown Economic Development Grant in the amount of $468,209.00 from the North Carolina 
Department of Commerce, Main Street & Rural Planning Center; and, 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Washington County Board of 

Commissioners; 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board commits to the provision of a five percent (5%) 
local match $23,410.45, contingent upon the successful award of $468,209.00 to Upgrade and 
Modernize the public Elevator at the Washington County Courthouse.

mailto:cpotter@washconc.org
mailto:acm@washconc.org
mailto:mdixon@washconc.org
mailto:jbennett@washconc.org


 

 

That Washington County is authorized to submit a formal application to the North Carolina 
Department of Commerce, Rural Downtown Economic Development Grant Fund, Main 
Street & Rural Planning Center in order to provide assistance to benefit Washington County 
Courthouse Elevator Modernization Project. 
 

That this Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption. 
 

Adopted this the 3rd day of September 2024 in Washington County, North Carolina. 
 

Ann C. Keyes, Chair 
Washington County Board of Commissioners 

 
 

ATTEST:   
Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 
Clerk to the Board 

 
 
Mr. Potter stated that the need for a grant application was brought to his attention. 

The grant would be for $468,209 and the County would have a 5% match. 
 
Commissioner Spruill noted that we had already approved for an elevator repair in 

the budget.  Mr. Potter stated we had $360,000 in the budget and we were going to pay for 
it all. The grant would be helpful. 

 
Chair Keyes said the County really does need to repair our Courthouse elevator to 

help our citizens be able to conduct their business in the Courthouse.  Commissioner 
Walker agreed—he said he got stuck in that elevator! 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 
Commissioner Spruill made a motion to approve RESO 2024-029 Washington 

County Resolution Application For NCDOC Rural Downtown Economic 
Development Grant Fund Main Street & Rural Planning Center Washington County 
Courthouse Elevator Modernization Project.  Commissioner Walker seconded; 
motion carried unanimously. 
 

Commissioner Spruill stated this Saturday is the Peanut Festival in Roper. 
Commissioners can line up at 11:00 AM at the Roper Gym for the parade to begin at noon. 

 
Commissioner Phelps mentioned that the Grand Re-Opening of the Welcome 

Center in downtown Plymouth will be at 9:00 AM this Saturday. 
 

Commissioner Johnson made a motion to go into Closed Session pursuant to 
NCGS§143-318.11(a)(3)  (attorney-client privilege) and NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6) 
(personnel). Commissioner Spruill seconded; motion carried unanimously. 
 
 Commissioner Spruill made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Commissioner                         
Phelps seconded; motion carried unanimously. 

 
 
______________________________  ____________________________ 
   Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC        Ann C. Keyes 
            Clerk to the Board               Chair 
 
 



DRAFT 

 

                        
September 27, 2024 

 
 The Washington County Board of Commissioners met in a Special Called meeting 
on Friday, September 27, 2024, at 6:00 PM in the Commissioners’ Room, 116 Adams 
Street, Plymouth, NC.  Commissioners Ann C. Keyes, Carol V. Phelps, and John C. 
Spruill were in attendance. Also, present were County Manager/County Attorney Curtis S. 
Potter, Assistant County Manager, Jason Squires, Clerk to the Board Julie J. Bennett and 
County Finance Officer Missy Dixon. Commissioners Johnson and Walker were unable to 
attend.  
 
 Chair Keyes called the meeting to order.  
 
 RESOLUTION 2024-032 APPROVING APPLICATION FOR GRANT 
FUNDING FOR HWY 45 LIFT STATION NEAR PreK-12 SCHOOL:  Mr. Cutis Potter, 
CM/CA spoke to Board regarding the resolution below.  The deadline to apply for the 
grant is Monday, Sept. 30.  The County is applying instead of the Town of Plymouth.  
They are in the process of applying for other grants and did not want to compromise their 
chances by applying for this one also.  We are also a better applicant for this grant. 
Commissioner Spruill asked if the County could turn over the lift station to the Town and 
Mr. Potter said yes, we can. We would need to work on an interlocal agreement with the 
Town of Plymouth. This will have to be done before work in started on the lift station, the 
grant is for $500,000 to completely replace the lift station rather than refurbishing it.  
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 
 
 Commissioner Spruill made a motion to approve RESO 2024-032 Approving 
Application For Grant Funding For Hwy 45 Lift Station Near PreK-12 School.  
Commissioner Phelps seconded; motion carried unanimously. 
 
 At 6:08 pm, with no further business to discuss, Commissioner Phelps made a motion to 
adjourn the meeting. Commissioner Spruill seconded; motion carried unanimously. 

 
 
______________________________  ____________________________ 
   Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC        Ann C. Keyes 
            Clerk to the Board               Chair 
 
 


	Cover page  for Commissioner booklets with window 6.4
	Agenda October 7, 2024
	9-30-24 Finance Report
	10-7-2024 Item 1 Consent Agenda
	Tax, Refunds & Insolvents Sept 2024
	RESO 2024-033 Continuity of Operations  County Manager's Absence draft20241002
	RESO 2024-034 RESOLUTION APPOINTING JASON SQUIRES AS DEPUTY CLERK TO THE BOARD OF WASHINGTON COUNTY
	10-7-2024 Item 2 (public forum)
	10-7-2024 Item 3 Dept. Info--Tax Office
	10-7-2024 Item 4 Update from the Salvation Army
	10-7-2024 Item 5 Public Hearing (cont)--Planning Board Recommendation--Signage Regulations Amendment
	Signage Ordinance Amendment and attachments
	Final Article VII Update Memo
	Old Signage Ordinance (Article 7) vs New Signage Ordinance (Article 7)
	New Signage Ordinance (Article 7)
	E. Permitted Signs for Identification in a Residential Zone:
	F. Permitted Signs for Commercial Use:
	G. Permitted Signs for Commercial and Corridor Zones:
	H. Outdoor Advertising Signs:
	I. Exempt Signs:
	J.  Appeals and Remedies:


	10-7-2024 Item 6 Smoking & Tobacco Use Ordinance Amendment
	Smoking Ordinance ORD-065 and attachments Oct 2024
	Smoking Ordinance Memo UPDATED
	Old Smoking Ordinance
	WashCo Smoking Ordinance FINAL (002)

	10-7-2024 Item 7 Boards & Committees
	10-7-2024 Item 8 Finance Officer's Report
	Budget Transfers & Amendments #022-028
	Expenditure Transaction Report-Budget Amendments-Transfers as of 9-30-2024
	Revenue Transaction Report-Budget Amendments-Transfers as of 9-30-2024
	10-7-2024 Item 9 Other Items
	Public Safety Awareness-Save the Date
	Reports for 10-7-2024 BoCC Meeting
	FY24-25 Statisitc Report  (1)
	ROD Ledger Summary Report
	10-7-2024 Item 10 Closed Session
	9-3-2024 Minutes
	9-9-2024  Special Called Mtg Minutes
	9-27-2024  Special Called Mtg Minutes



